

### City of Spokane, Washington

Statement of City Business, including a Summary of the Proceedings of the City Council

Volume 106

#### JANUARY 27, 2016

Issue 4



#### MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

MAYOR DAVID A. CONDON COUNCIL PRESIDENT BEN STUCKART COUNCIL MEMBERS: MIKE FAGAN (DISTRICT 1) LORI KINNEAR (DISTRICT 2) CANDACE MUMM (DISTRICT 3) VACANT (DISTRICT 2) KAREN STRATTON (DISTRICT 3) AMBER WALDREF (DISTRICT 1)

#### The Official Gazette

(USPS 403-480)

Published by Authority of City Charter Section 39

The Official Gazette is published weekly by the Office of the City Clerk 5th Floor, Municipal Building, Spokane, WA 99201-3342

> Official Gazette Archive: http://www.spokanecity.org/services/documents

To receive the Official Gazette by e-mail, send your request to: <u>clerks@spokanecity.org</u>

#### INSIDE THIS ISSUE

Minutes	134
HEARING NOTICES	137
Policies & Procedures	138
JOB OPPORTUNITIES	166
NOTICES FOR BIDS	170

JANUARY 27, 2016

**The Official Gazette** USPS 403-480 0% Advertising Periodical postage paid at Spokane, WA

#### **POSTMASTER:**

Send address changes to: Official Gazette Office of the Spokane City Clerk 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd. 5th Floor Municipal Bldg. Spokane, WA 99201-3342

#### **Subscription Rates:**

Within Spokane County: \$4.75 per year Outside Spokane County: \$13.75 per year

Subscription checks made payable to: City Treasurer

#### Address Change:

Official Gazette Office of Spokane City Clerk 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd. 5th Floor Municipal Bldg. Spokane, WA 99201-3342

## Minutes

#### NOTICE

#### NO MEETING MINUTES OF SPOKANE CITY COUNCIL Tuesday, January 19, 2016

The Tuesday, January 19, 2016 regularly scheduled City Council meeting was not held. Therefore, no meeting minutes will be published for this date. (Note: No meeting was scheduled to be held on Monday, January 18, 2016 due to the observance of the Martin Luther King Jr. holiday.)

#### STUDY SESSION MEETING MINUTES SPOKANE CITY COUNCIL Thursday, January 7, 2016

A Special Meeting of the Spokane City Council was held on the above date at 1:00 p.m. in the City Council Briefing Center, Lower Level – City Hall, 808 West Spokane Falls Boulevard, Spokane, Washington. Council President Stuckart and Council Members Fagan, Kinnear, Mumm, Snyder, Stratton and Waldref were present.

The following topics were discussed:

- Intercultural Development Inventory
- Open records/meetings adherence
- City email and social media use

The meeting was open to the public but was conducted in a study session format. No public testimony was taken and discussion was limited to appropriate officials and staff.

The meeting adjourned at 4:25 p.m.

#### Public Safety Committee, October 19, 2015

**Meeting minutes**: meeting called to order at 1:29pm

#### Attendance:

PSC Members Present: Snyder, Waldref, Allen, Fagan, Stratton, Stuckart & Mumm

**Staff/Others Present**: Dir. Schwering, Asst. Chief Schaeffer, Chief Dobrow, Asst. Chief Smith, Blaine Stum, Angie Napolitano, Sue Raymon, Heather Trautman, Deb Conklin, Justin Bingham, Patrick Striker, Sarah Lynds, Chief Williams, Kim Orlob, Sgt. Dan Ervin, Matt Folsom

**Approval of minutes**: Council Member Fagan made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from September 21, 2015; M/S by CM Allen; passed unanimously.

#### Consent Agenda:

Photo Red – Briefing Paper Only Sit and Lie – Briefing Paper Only Station 5 Update – Briefing Paper Only Recruit Academy Graduation – Briefing Paper Only 2015 NW Fire Stats – Briefing Paper Only I-502 Update – Briefing Paper Only

#### Council Requests

#### Vacation of Marijuana Misdemeanors – CP Stuckart

CP Stuckart said the ordinance is modeled off of state law, which allows people a onetime opportunity to vacate a misdemeanor charge from their record. He said that while he was drafting this ordinance, he met with the prosecutor's office and they signed off. There was a question about the process for this. Justin Bingham noted that people will have to come before municipal court and make a motion to vacate. He said that he does not anticipate a lot of people petitioning for this, so it will not be a burden on them. CM Fagan asked whether the charges would show up in a background check after they are vacated. Justin said that they would not.

#### Precinct Staffing Update – CP Stuckart

Council President Stuckart stated that there is some concern about the downtown precinct and those resources shifting to the Intermodal. Chief Dobrow explained that the intent is to put police operations into city-owned assets to save money; the Intermodal is a city-owned facility. Greyhound vacated the first floor; SPD looked at this space and it looked reasonable to use as a storefront; there are some storage issues that need to be worked on for bicycles and the "mule". Once those needs are met, the intent is to vacate Peyton and eventually move the downtown facility. Part of the concern of moving further east is that we're going to be abandoning downtown. We will still have physical presence; the Intermodal will just be a home-base. Core of downtown is shifting east, particularly with the medical school and other things that are going on down there, so the move further east is good. Chief Dobrow made a commitment that there will not be a difference in policing, outreach or any of the things that SPD is doing very well downtown. Questions included:

C/P Stuckart was under the impression that the Intermodal was going to service the south hill. Chief Dobrow stated that Asset Management is scouting facilities in the south hill. SPD is also working with C.O.P.S., Patrick Striker, about combining resources. Makes sense to invite C.O.P.S. back into SPD facilities that are able to operate a combined front desk, where possible.

C/M Waldref stated that STA will be renovating the plaza in the next two years and they are trying to make security more prominent. Chief Dobrow stated that SPD used to have a satellite office in the STA plaza 18+ years ago to work in collaboration with STA security; not sure why we moved away from that model.

C/M Stratton asked about West Central. Chief Dobrow stated that there are no plans for a precinct in West Central; Officer Ponto will remain in the office that is presently there. Chief Dobrow also announced that, as of this morning's swearing in, SPD is fully staffed at 310 personnel for the first time.

C/M Waldref stated that if we say the precincts are going to be open to the public, then they need to be open. Chief Dobrow explained that the Hillyard Precinct is open to the public but that we don't have shifts of front desk officers, so if the person is sick or on vacation, there is no one to replace her unless we can get a Patrol person to cover; that's where C.O.P.S. coming in can definitely help.

#### US 195 Safety/City-Wide Fatality and Injury Data – CM Snyder

C/M Snyder noted that there was recently a fatal crash on 195 where three young women died. He said there have been 17 traffic fatalities this year, which is higher than previous years. He noted that this is happening in other places in Washington and that members of the Washington Traffic Safety Commission have theories on what may be driving it.

C/M Snyder said that he attended a community meeting with WSDOT the prior week where WSDOT representatives said that they are looking at low cost solutions to improve safety on that stretch of 195. Another community meeting will be held on December 2, 2015. He suggested Council consider adding 195 safety improvements to the legislative agenda. C/M Snyder then discussed the fatality and injury heat maps provided to him by the Washington Traffic Safety Commission.

#### Bicycle Theft Data/Details – CM Snyder

Dir. Schwering included three years of data in the OPA update - Page 17. C/M Snyder would like to see five or ten year data. C/M Snyder will take this information to the Bicycle Advisory Board. The next step is to see if there is something that can be done for prevention. No questions or discussion.

#### PD Public Safety Building Lease/Negotiations Update – CM Mumm

Chief Dobrow stated that there are no immediate plans to vacate the PSB. C/M Mumm asked for an update on catching up the lease. Sarah Lynds stated that she believes this should be negotiated at the City Administration level. The written agreement is very vague and hasn't been resolved; they have settled "old-old" items, now working on the newer-old items; they haven't finalized 2014. Sarah suggested this goes to Finance Committee meeting. Kim Orlob explained there is still a time delay due to audits.

#### Spokane Police Department

#### Logan AIA – Chief Dobrow

Chief Dobrow explained that Logan Neighborhood Council sent a letter requesting an AIA. He has contacted the Civil Enforcement Unit to provide a brief summary of what is required to move forward. It is not an easy undertaking because they have to demonstrate that the sale of high percentage alcohol or fortified beer has impacted the area. The City of Spokane would have to designate the borders for an AIA, etc., and explain the rationale for the boundaries to the Liquor Control Board; there has to be very specific reasons why an area is contained. It is up to the Liquor Control Board to authorize/deny the application for the AIA. There has to be an ordinance passed by City Council designating it as an AIA, notifying all of premises that possess liquor licenses that we're moving forward with AIA designation, collect further information that demonstrates a need, and develop a written report. The last one done successfully was in 2009. Questions included:

C/M Waldref asked who the point person will be; the neighborhood is ready to move forward. Chief Dobrow has to work with Captain Meidl to decide who that will be. In the meantime, he will respond to the neighborhood and tell them they can start moving forward until a point person is designated.

C/M Waldref said the neighborhood would like to sit down with someone so they can ask questions about the data. She said that they have met with East Sprague to talk about how it was done. C/M Snyder said they can't vote on it until they have a point person; need a point person who will be there for at least a year.

C/M Allen suggested that it would be interesting to compare stats for East Sprague before and after the AIA designation – presentation in a legislative session is a reporting requirement.

#### Civil Enforcement Unit: Abandoned Properties – Asst. Chief Smith

Sgt. Dan Ervin and Matt Folsom from City Attorney's office gave a PowerPoint presentation on the Civil Enforcement Unit. Sgt. Ervin is the head of CEU. Primary objective is to remove the profit incentive out of crime and to get to the root causes of crime: poverty, education and housing. Abatement is a Superior Court law suit that is filed for chronic criminal or chronic drug activity at a property; can vacate and secure the property for one year.

CEU discovered that there are approximately 1764 vacant properties in the city of Spokane. Vacant abandoned properties are an urgent problem with widespread concern. With many of these vacant abandoned properties, the property owner has walked away from the property and the bank has not transferred ownership. These "zombie" properties create the location and opportunity for crime. According to the Center for Community Progress, abandoned vacant properties: decrease adjacent property values; decrease property tax revenue (both nonpayment and depreciated value); increase cost of police/fire/code responses; and increase maintenance and judicial costs.

Heather Trautman will email council the information on the Mayors Housing Task Force. C/M Waldref will bring the final draft of the Abandoned Property/Foreclosure Registry.

#### OPA Report/Strategic Initiatives Report – Dir. Schwering

Dir. Schwering noted some of the highlights from the monthly report, including but not limited to: IA Update- 89 complaints; Investigations Update - 45% fewer homicides in 2014; Bicycle data; Records Update - 1,135 records requests; body camera requests have been negotiated to pare it down; Deadly Force Review boards – 7 total - held one last week; trimming it down. Every report will go online once it is finished.

C/M Allen asked about prioritizing records requests. Dir. Schwering explained that WASPC state law states that we cannot prioritize; can only be done in the order that they come in. C/M Mumm asked if we can communicate to the university requests about the costs involved with their requests. Dir. Schwering stated that they are required to fulfill it. C/M Snyder suggested that having more open data would help.

#### Spokane Fire Department

#### Hazmat Response Agreement w// FAFB – Chief Williams

This is an agreement with FAFB and the City for mutual aid responses by either entities' Haz Mat Teams and Command Staff on hazardous materials incidents. Fairchild is comfortable with the agreement so it will be coming forward for briefing and approval. There was no discussion or questions.

#### Staff Requests

#### Ombudsperson Report – Commissioner Deb Conklin

Commissioner Conklin said the Commission completed a job description for a staffer and will be accepting applications for the position. She said Breean retained a firm in Florida to further investigate Breeden and is currently working with a

firm in British Columbia to further investigate Humayn. She noted that Commissioner Richter ran into the Mayor asked him about an Interim Ombudsperson, The Mayor told him the Commission needs to make a formal request, which they are currently doing.

CM Allen asked if any thought is being given to having an Assistant Ombudsperson position. Commissioner Conklin said that if this is the way people want to go, they will need to increase the salary for the Assistant position in order to make sure it is commiserate with their increased duties and responsibilities. CP Stuckart asked for formal Interim Ombudsperson language from Commissioner Conklin so he could discuss it with the Guild and the Center for Justice.

#### SRLJC Update – Dr. Van Wormer

Dr. Van Wormer gave an update on the structure of the SRLJC. She said a software vendor is coming to Spokane soon to showcase a risk/needs/responsivity tool, which they hope to go live for pre-trial in spring 2016. She also said that the data dashboards being worked on by one of the subcommittees will likely go live in spring 2016.

The Technology and Facilities Subcommittee of the SRLJC recently made a recommendation to the full SRLJC for a jail room at the court house, which would allow for more first appearances in court. She said this is important because quite a few people being held in the jail are being held for their first appearance, so this would reduce the backlog.

Dr. Van Wormer traveled to Chicago with Judge Szambelan and Keith Cummings for the unveiling of the full McArthur Foundation Grant. Said the proposals need to big and bold in order to compete. She said if they do not get selected, they would still be a part of the McArthur Foundation challenge that the grant is for. CM Snyder asked what the Council could do to support the SRLJC in getting the grant. Dr. Van Wormer suggested a letter of support or resolution by mid-December.

#### Action Items: N/A.

Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 2:59pm.

#### Attachments/Briefing Papers:

Photo Red Briefing Paper Sit and Lie Arrest/Citation Briefing Paper Briefing on Fire Department Items Haz Mat Response Agreement with FAFB Station 5 (SW Spokane) update Recruit Academy Graduation 2015 Northwest Fire Statistics to Date San Diego Police Equipment Value Blanket JAG FY 2015 Acceptance Spokane Regional Safe Streets Task Force Operational Agreement Use of Force Analysis Strategic Initiatives Update

Attachments are on file for review in the Office of the City Clerk.

# **Hearing Notices**

Notice of City Council Public Hearing Proposed City of Spokane Comprehensive Plan Land Use and Zoning Amendments for The Spokane Housing Ventures Annexation (Proposed Ordinances C35359 and C35360)

Notice is hereby given that the City of Spokane is seeking Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map and Zoning Map amendments for additional land proposed to be annexed into the City of Spokane. The annexation area encompasses approximately 42 acres and is bounded by 53rd Avenue on the north, the Palouse Highway on the east, 55th Avenue on the south, and Regal Street on the west. A hearing on the land use and zoning amendments for the annexation area is scheduled for Monday, February 8, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Lower Level of Spokane City Hall,

**808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd., Spokane, WA 99201.** Adoption of land use and zoning designations for areas to be annexed usually involves two City Council Hearings at least 30 days apart, so testimony will be taken at the February 8, 2016 City Council Hearing, with Council action deferred to a March 14, 2016 City Council Annexation Hearing. Any person may submit written comments or testify on the proposed actions or call for additional information.

City of Spokane Planning & Development, Attn: Jo Anne Wright 808 West Spokane Falls Boulevard Spokane, WA 99201-3333 (509) 625-6017; jwright@spokanecity.org

Documents relating to this proposal are at: https://my.spokanecity.org/projects/spokane-housing-ventures-request-for-annexation/

### Only the applicant, persons submitting written comments and persons testifying at a hearing may appeal the decision.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) INFORMATION: The City of Spokane is committed to providing equal access to its facilities, programs and services for persons with disabilities. The Council Chambers and the Council Briefing Center in the lower level of Spokane City Hall, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd., are both wheelchair accessible. The Council Briefing Center is equipped with an audio loop system for persons with hearing loss. The Council Chambers currently has an infrared system and headsets may be checked out by contacting the meeting organizer. Individuals requesting reasonable accommodations or further information may call, write, or email Chris Cavanaugh at (509) 625-6383, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd, Spokane, WA, 99201; or <u>ccavanaugh@spokanecity.org</u>. Persons who are deaf or hard of hearing may contact Ms. Cavanaugh at (509) 625-6383 through the Washington Relay Service at 7-1-1. Please contact us forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting date.

Publish: January 27 and February 3, 2016

# **Policies and Procedures**

#### CITY OF SPOKANE ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURE

#### ADMIN 0430 -16- 01 / LGL 2014-0010

#### EFFECTIVE DATE: March 31, 2014

#### **REVISION EFFECTIVE DATE: January 1, 2016**

#### TITLE: GRANTS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GUIDE

1.0 GENERAL

The purpose of the Grants and Financial Assistance Guide is to establish, implement and maintain meaningful oversight and coordination of grant and financial assistance awards throughout the entire award life cycle; thereby increasing award related revenue, limiting the City's exposure to grant related legal liability, and improving the efficiency and impact of programs and services funded and provided through awards of financial assistance.

#### 1.2 TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 GENERAL
2.0 DEPARTMENTS/DIVISIONS AFFECTED
3.0 REFERENCES
4.0 DEFINITIONS
5.0 POLICY
6.0 PROCEDURE
7.0 RESPONSIBILITIES
8.0 APPENDICES

#### 2.0 DEPARTMENTS/DIVISIONS AFFECTED

This policy shall apply to all City departments and divisions.

#### 3.0 REFERENCES

None

#### 4.0 DEFINITIONS

4.1 "Financial Assistance" is comprised of federal, state and local / private formula and project grants, entitlements and cooperative agreements, as well as federal and state loans and direct payments wherein the purpose is the transfer of money, property, services or anything of value to the City of Spokane for public benefit. It also includes federal and state contracts and any other contract/agreement being supported with federal or state funds. It does not include donations. City departments and offices should contact the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for assistance in determining whether an award should be classified as a grant or donation.

#### 5.0 POLICY

- 5.1 The City of Spokane pursues and obtains grants and other awards of financial assistance to provide and enhance services the City has determined to be beneficial to the citizens of Spokane and to reduce City taxpayer burden in supporting those services.
- 5.2 The City of Spokane Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance oversees the Department of Grants Management and Financial Assistance and ensures fiscal and programmatic accountability and compliance for awards of financial assistance made to the City of Spokane. Specifically, this position is responsible for:
  - a. Establishing internal controls to safeguard federal, state and local / private grant assets and ensure their proper use;
  - b. Establishing written policies and procedures that clarify responsibilities for submitting applications, accepting and administering approved awards;
  - c. Developing and managing systems to coordinate the identification of funding resources and track the entire lifecycle of grants and other financial assistance awards;
  - d. Establishing written policies and procedures to ensure compliance with funding requirements as defined by funding agencies, the Code of Federal Regulations and the State of Washington;
  - e. Assisting City departments with interpretation and application of City, state, federal and other funder policies and requirements;
  - f. Providing regular compliance review of all financial assistance awards and award subrecipients to determine if they are in compliance with the requirements of federal, state and local laws, City policies and requirements of the award documents;
  - g. Serving as a training and technical assistance resource for City elected officials, department heads and their staff;
  - h. Serving as the Authorized Organization Representative for the City of Spokane relative to awards of financial assistance; and
  - i. Maintaining the central DUNS and SAM registration for the City of Spokane which is used by all City departments and offices.
- 5.3 The department or division designated by the Mayor to receive and administer the financial assistance award is ultimately responsible for complying with all provisions, terms and conditions of the agreement.

5.4 The Mayor may make minor revisions, additions, or deletions to these procedures without City Council approval.

#### 6.0 PROCEDURE

See Appendix

#### 7.0 RESPONSIBILITIES

The Director of Grants Management and Financial Assistance is responsible for administering this policy and procedure.

#### 8.0 APPENDICES

City of Spokane Grant and Financial Assistance Guide

APPROVED BY:

Erin Jacobson January 7, 2016 Date City Attorney

Sally Stopher January 8, 2016 Director of Grants & Financial Assistance Date

David A. Condon **City Administrator**  January 8, 2016 Date

#### APPENDIX

#### **CITY OF SPOKANE**

#### **GRANTS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GUIDE**

**EFFECTIVE MARCH 31, 2014 REVISED JANUARY 1, 2016** 

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### TOPIC

#### PAGE NO.

SECTION ONE: ADMINISTRATIVE/PRE-AWARD PLANNING	
Roles and Responsibilities	1
Conflict of Interest	4
Letter of Support Requests from External Organizations	6
Award Management System	
Internally Competing Applications	9
External Notifications	
Administration/Maintenance of Award System Registrations	11
SECTION TWO: RESEARCH AND APPLICATION	
Strategic Pursuit of Outside Funding	
Pre-Application & Renewals	
Application Submission	17
SECTION THREE: AWARD ACCEPTANCE	
Award Acceptance	

JANUARY 27, 2016	Official Gazette, Spokane, WA	
Award Managament Team		20
Awaru Management Team		20
Budgeting & Financial Setup		
SECTION FOUR: POST-AWARI	DADMINISTRATION	
		22
Program Income		23
Drawdowns		26
Expenditures and Disbursements	5	28
Matching or Cash-Sharing Contri	butions	30
Procurement		31
Supplanting		33
Property Management		36
	CONTRACTING & MONITORING	
Subawards		<u></u> 43
FFATA Reporting		46
Subrecipient Monitoring		47
SECTION SIX: REPORTING		
Program Reports		49
Financial Reports		<u></u> 50
SECTION SEVEN: AUDITS & RI		
Audits		<u></u> 53
SECTION EIGHT: CLOSE-OUT		
Close-Out		
Records Retention		

141

#### SECTION ONE: ADMINISTRATIVE/PRE-AWARD PLANNING

#### ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to establish the roles and associated responsibilities of the various City of Spokane divisions, departments and their staff involved in the grant and financial assistance life cycle.

#### Policy:

City of Spokane divisions and departments and their staff whom occupy positions of responsibility with respect to grant and financial assistance activity have specific roles and responsibilities that they are required to perform and uphold both ethically and in the best interests of the City.

#### Procedures:

#### 1. Office of the Mayor

The Mayor has sole responsibility for final execution and acceptance of grant and financial assistance awards and approval of projects and programs that they support. As such, the Mayor or his/her designee is the Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) for purposes of the execution of grant and financial assistance awards.

Proposals for funding often require the name and contact information for the senior authority for the City of Spokane. In these cases, the name and requested information of the Mayor shall be provided. If an electronic signature is required in lieu of a written signature, this should be coordinated and approved through the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance, which department will also be responsible for maintaining any associated login and password information on behalf of the Mayor's Office.

#### 2. Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance

The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) provides centralized management, oversight and other support services to City-wide activities involving the application, administration, reporting and closeout of grants and financial assistance awards. Additionally, GMFA provides centralized consultation and coordination with City administration and the City Council, to strategically identify and manage the grants and financial assistance opportunities to be pursued by the City and region. Therefore, all grant and financial assistance activity must be routed through GMFA in accordance with this Grants and Financial Assistance Guide.

GMFA is responsible for maintaining the central DUNS, and System for Award Management (SAM) registration for the City of Spokane which is used by all City departments and divisions. The Director of GMFA shall serve as the City's E-Business Point of Contact for this purpose.

Additional responsibilities of GMFA include strategic award planning, training of internal customers, establishing and maintaining effective internal controls over grants and financial assistance awards, promotion of funding opportunities, technical assistance, maintenance of informational web pages, identifying and investigating compliance issues that may arise with respect to the management of City grants and financial assistance awards, and mediation towards collaborative grant submittals between internal/external agencies, organizations and individuals. Other responsibilities are indicated throughout this Guide.

#### 3. Accounting Department

The Accounting Department is responsible for establishing unique program numbers and/or detail codes for each award in the accounting system to ensure that associated revenues and expenses are tracked appropriately and individual award funds are not commingled with other funds. This includes the establishment of proper revenue and expense accounts. Additionally, this department is responsible for processing accounting transactions, including drawdowns of award funds, preparation of financial reports and processing payments to subrecipients and vendors after approval of appropriate award/program management personnel in the recipient department and/or personnel of GMFA as provided in this Guide. Other responsibilities are indicated throughout this Guide.

#### 4. Legal Department

Grant and financial assistance agreements are different from many other contracts in that there is little or no negotiation involved. In the vast majority of circumstances, the City will either sign the agreement or decline the award. Despite the City's lack of bargaining power in this regard, it is nevertheless prudent to conduct a legal review of award agreements to ensure that all of the terms of the agreement are legally enforceable. The City's Legal Department shall review the terms and conditions of the award as an initial step in the award acceptance process in coordination with GMFA.

#### 5. City Departments and Divisions Receiving Awards

The City department or division that receives the award is responsible for all aspects of the award lifecycle including planning for award acquisition, preparation and submitting funding proposals, preparing ordinance requests to accept awards and budget funds, developing award implementation plans, managing award programs, preparing, reviewing and submitting reports to awarding agencies, and properly closing out award projects, as detailed throughout this guide and in compliance with all award terms, conditions and applicable regulations.

The department shall designate the individual who will serve as the Award Manager and in this capacity is the primary person responsible for the day-to-day award administration and compliance. This person may be the same, or in addition to, the overall Project Manager.

In some instances such as with the Community, Housing Human Services Department, Award Manager responsibilities share be a shared function between the award recipient department and the Grants Management & Financial Assistance Department. In those instances, a documented structure designating specific responsibilities shall be developed and implemented.

#### CONFLICT OF INTEREST

#### Purpose:

Conflicts of interest can damage the reputation and credibility of the City. Further, the appearance of a conflict of interest can be just as damaging to the City's reputation and credibility as an actual conflict. The purpose of this policy is to avoid an appearance, or actual, conflict of interest or breach of trust by an official or employee of the City.

#### Policy:

No employee, officer or agent of the City of Spokane shall have any interest, financial or otherwise, direct or direct, or have any arrangement concerning prospective employment that will, or may be reasonably expected to, bias the design, conduct or reporting of a grant or financial assistance funded project on which he or she is working.

In addition, no employee, officer or agent of the City of Spokane may participate in the selection, or in the award or administration of a contract supported by a grant or other award of financial assistance to the City of Spokane if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when any of the following parties has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award:

- An employee, officer, or agent of the subrecipient;
- Any member of an employee's officer's, or agent's immediate family;
- An employee's, agent's or officer's partner; or
- An organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the identified in the preceding section.

Officers, employees or agents will not solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or parties to subawards. Any additional prohibitions relative to real, apparent, or potential conflicts of interests made by an awarding agency must be complied with.

Any real, apparent, or potential conflicts of interests involving City employees, officers or agents, or subrecipients of the City, shall be reported to the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance. The Director shall disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest related to a federal grant to the federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in accordance with applicable federal awarding agency policy.

#### Procedure:

The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall develop and implement conflict of interest certifications for use under federal grants and financial assistance awards and provide related training and technical assistance.

The assigned Award Manager in the City department or division receiving theaward shall ensure that in the use of award funds, officials or employees of the City and nongovernmental recipients or subrecipients shall avoid any action that might result in, or create the appearance of:

- a) Using his or her official position for private gain;
- b) Giving preferential treatment to any person or organization;
- c) Losing complete independence or impartiality;
- d) Making an official decision outside official channels;
- e) Affecting adversely public confidence in the program funded by the award in particular and the City in general;
- f) Any violation of this provision is governed by Spokane Municipal Code Chapter 01.04 Code of Ethics.

Any questions or concerns in this regard shall be referred to the division director or department head and the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

#### LETTER OF SUPPORT REQUESTS FROM EXTERNAL ORGANIZATIONS

#### Purpose:

External organizations frequently seek support from the City for applications they intend to submit to funding agencies. Requests for such support often are made to City staff, directors or officials who may be unaware of whether other City divisions or departments are competing for the same grant opportunity or supporting another external organization's application. Additionally, there may be other reasons why it would not be in the City's interests to provide support. The purpose of this policy is to establish a process and standards for providing a letter of support for a grant or financial assistance application to external organizations.

#### Policy:

Letters of support for a funding application prepared by an external entity, and for which the City is not a collaborating partner who will receive or contribute money, property, services or anything of value (including in-kind), if awarded, shall be forwarded to the Director of Grants & Financial Assistance (GMFA) for review and approval. Copies of all letters of support shall be maintained by the GMFA Department.

If the City is a collaborating partner, who will receive or contribute money, property, services or anything of value (including in-kind), the policy and procedures in Section Two, Pre-Application, of this Guide shall be followed.

#### Procedure:

- 1. Upon receiving a request from an external organization for a letter of support for a grant or other financial assistance application, the appropriate division director or department head must decide whether to support the request.
- 2. If the division director or department head determines not to support the request, the external organization should be notified in writing that the City will not provide a letter of support.
- 3. If the division director or department head supports the request, he/she must inform the Director of GMFA. This notification should include a draft letter of support and a copy of the Notice of Funding Announcement (NOFA) or Request for Proposals/Qualifications (RFP/Q) the application is being submitted in response to, as well as a brief written summary of whether the mission and activities of the requesting organization, and the proposed project the letter would support, are consistent with City priorities, and whether the proposed project or the letter of support has the potential for future obligations by the City. This may all be submitted via email.
- 4. The Director of GMFA shall verify whether another City department or division is pursuing the funding in the Award Management Database, or if a supporting letter may conflict with a known application or previous funding history of another community agency. This information shall be forwarded to the division director or department head.
- 5. A summary description of requested letters of support shall be included in the weekly Grants/Financial Assistance Report prepared by the Director of GMFA and submitted to the Cabinet and City Council.
- 6. Any potential conflicts, other significant concerns and feedback should be communicated to the division director or department head and the Director of GMFA.
- 7. If there are no unresolved conflicts or other significant concerns in the five (5) days subsequent to the release of the weekly report, the letter of support may be signed by the division director or department head the following week. The Director of GMFA should be provided a copy of the final letter of support for retention in the central grants and financial assistance files.

#### AWARD MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

#### Purpose:

The Award Management System is a software tool to assist in the management of grant and financial assistance awards to the City throughout the entire award lifecycle; improve coordination; enhance oversight; identify and successfully acquire new funding sources; and provide a snapshot of the current Citywide grant and financial assistance landscape. The purpose of this policy is to describe the use of the Award Management System and to establish the responsibilities for entering the required award related data, along with requirements for maintaining and updating that data.

#### Policy:

An award record shall be created in the Award Management System for each funding opportunity a City employee identifies for application, or for each award received that may not have been applied for. This award record shall constitute the master award file and shall contain all documentation needed to demonstrate compliance and performance.

Each record shall include all information requested in the Award Management System as applicable to the associated award, including the application and supporting materials, all reports submitted and the associated supporting documentation, award documents and associated amendments, subawards and the associated invoices and supporting documentation as well as all subrecipient financial and program reports, the due dates of all required reporting, relevant information from the implementation plan, and completion dates of all tasks and deliverables.

The award record in this system shall serve as the master award file. Each award record shall be updated upon any change to the status of the award and/or the information previously entered.

- 1. Assigned members of the Award Management Team will ensure that the award documents and materials they are responsible for drafting or approving are uploaded into the Award Management System in the most recent or final version, as well as completion dates of all tasks and deliverables.
- 2. Upon any change to the status of an award and/or information previously entered into the Award Management System, the Award Manager shall ensure that the associated award record is updated.
- 3. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will be responsible for conducting a final review of the award record upon notification of closeout and ensuring that the award record is complete and accurate.

#### INTERNALLY COMPETING APPLICATIONS

#### Purpose:

Funding agencies generally will not consider any proposal from an applicant if that applicant has submitted more than one proposal during the same funding round. This is especially true for federal and state grantors. Therefore, it is imperative that the potential for multiple submissions to the same funding agency during the same funding round is resolved. The purpose of this policy is to identify the procedure for resolving such conflicts.

#### Policy:

The City shall not submit multiple applications to the same funding agency during the same funding round unless explicitly allowed by the funder and approved by the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA). In the event that multiple departments or divisions intend to submit an application to the same funder during the same funding round, and the funder will not accept more than one (1) application from the City, the Director of GMFA shall be the final arbiter of which department or division will submit the application.

#### Procedure:

- 1. Upon identifying the potential for the submission of multiple applications to the same grantor during the same funding cycle, the Director of GMFA shall seek to determine whether the funding agency permits multiple submissions. If the grantor allows multiple submissions, the departments or divisions may continue the application process as provided in Section Two of this Guide.
- 2. If the funder does not allow for multiple submissions, the Director of GMFA shall meet with the departments or divisions in question and seek to determine whether a collaborative approach is feasible. If a collaborative approach is feasible, a joint application can then be pursued as provided in Section Two of this Guide.
- 3. Should a collaborative approach prove infeasible, the Director of GMFA shall notify the Chief Financial Officer and identify the scenario, including her/his analysis and recommendation in the Review/Consideration section of the Weekly Grants/Financial Assistance Report distributed to the Cabinet and City Council.
- 4. Upon receiving feedback from the Chief Financial Officer and/or Cabinet and City Council, the Director of GMFA will notify the departments and divisions as to which application may be submitted.

#### EXTERNAL NOTIFICATIONS

#### Purpose:

Many funding agencies, especially nationally competitive federal award programs, will not favorably consider multiple proposals from a single region as it is a viewed as a demonstration of a lack of community coordination and collaboration. Therefore, it is important that the City coordinate with other local governments and community partners to ensure that the most competitive, strategic funding proposal is submitted to benefit the residents of the City of Spokane.

#### Policy:

The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) will notify and coordinate with Spokane County, other local municipalities and community partners, as appropriate, when a City department or division is pursuing a funding opportunity for which more than one (1) application submission for the region would likely result in funding declinations for all applicants and a potential loss of funding to the region.

- 1. The Director of GMFA will send an email notification via the Award Management System when a City department or division has identified a funding opportunity it intends to apply for which has the potential to draw competing applications from other jurisdictions or partners.
- 2. Notification may also be sent when there is an opportunity to partner to strengthen an application being prepared.
- The Director of GMFA and the division director or department head of the City department seeking to apply for funding shall meet with any external entities also considering application to work towards an amicable resolution that identifies the most competitive, strategic applicant and potential opportunities for partnership.
- 4. Any external conflicts will be identified in the Weekly Grants/Financial Assistance Report distributed to the Cabinet via the Chief Financial Officer and City Council.

#### ADMINISTRATION/MAINTENANCE OF AWARD SYSTEM REGISTRATIONS

#### Purpose:

Most award programs have requirements or options for submitting funding applications, applicant agency registrations, etc. through electronic systems. In order to submit the application or maintain the agency registration, the individual submitting the application or registration must be approved as an Authorized Organization Representative of the City of Spokane for this specific purpose.

#### Policy:

Federal grant applications submitted through grants.gov require the individual submitting the application to be an Authorized Organizational Representative of the City of Spokane for this purpose. Authorization can only be granted by City's E-Business Point of Contact for its DUNS/System for Award Management (SAM) registration.

The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) shall serve as the City's E-Business Point of Contact and shall be responsible for maintaining the central DUNS and System for Award Management (SAM) registration for the City of Spokane which shall be used by all City departments and offices.

#### Procedure:

- 1. The Director of GMFA shall maintain the annual and any ongoing updates and registration requirements for the City of Spokane in the central DUNS and System for Award Management (SAM).
- 2. City departments and divisions submitting federal applications for funding or seeking to accept non-competitive awards shall ensure that the single DUNS number maintained by the Director of GMFA is used in all application and award documents. The Award Manager or person preparing the application should contact the GMFA Department and confirm the correct DUNS number to use.
- 3. In order to submit a grant application through the Federal grants.gov system, the individual submitting the application must be an Authorized Organizational Representative (AOR). In order to be registered as an AOR for this purpose, go to www.grants.gov and follow the instructions describing how to prepare to apply for funding opportunities through grants.gov. The AOR registration process has three steps that must be taken in order as follows:
  - a. Registration with the Credential Provider
  - b. Registration with grants.gov
  - c. Authorization as an AOR by the City's E-Business Point of Contact
- Once registration with the credential provider and with grants.gov has been completed, an email will be sent to the Director of GMFA as the E-Business Point of Contact. The Alternate E-Business Point of Contact is the GMFA Administrator.
- 5. The E-Business Point of Contact will authorize the request.
- 6. All applications submitted through grants.gov must comply with the standard policies and procedures for application submission as described in Section Two of this Guide.
- 7. Once authorized, the AOR has the authority to electronically sign applications and the required certifications and/or assurances that are necessary to fulfill the requirements of the application process so long as the application submission was approved by the Director of GMFA and the appropriate division director or department head.

#### SECTION TWO: RESEARCH AND APPLICATION

#### STRATEGIC PURSUIT OF OUTSIDE FUNDING

#### Purpose:

In order to coordinate the City's grants and financial assistance activities effectively, the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) must have knowledge of prioritized department and division needs that potentially can be met through grants and other awards of financial assistance. This knowledge will allow the GMFA Department to coordinate common needs among agencies and divisions, plan for submission of proposals to regular cyclical funding opportunities, and be pre-positioned to assist the departments and divisions in the submission of proposals to those opportunities when they arise. Finally, such knowledge allows the GMFA Department to identify the potential for parallel or redundant submissions, as well as areas for potential collaboration. The purpose of this policy is to promote a strategic approach to the pursuit of outside funding and to enhance the City's ability to coordinate grant and financial assistance activity on a City-wide scale.

#### Policy:

Applications for grant and financial assistance and their awards shall align with existing City strategic plans and processes. Awards typically support activities in three categories: 1) capital; 2) operating; and 3) program. Applications and awards for capital should align with the City's 6-Year Capital Strategic Plan. Applications and awards for operating and program support should align with other existing plans such as the Annual Action Plan (HUD) and the 6-Year Transportation Plan. In addition to these plans, each City department or division that seeks outside funding should undergo an annual strategic planning process for grant and financial assistance acquisition and produce a prioritized list of needs that can potentially be met through this funding. Budgets and brief narrative statements should be developed for each of the needs, as should goals and objectives that, once achieved, will address the identified need.

#### Procedure:

- 1. Departments shall conduct an annual needs assessment during the budget process which identifies needs that can potentially be met through grant and financial assistance funding.
- 2. The identified needs should be prioritized and a timeframe assigned to them, indicating whether they are short-term or long-term priorities.
- 3. Goals and measurable objectives should be identified that, once met, will address each identified need.
- 4. Brief narratives should be developed, including a description of activities, personnel, equipment, facility and other resources that will be required.
- 5. Budgets should be developed to identify the overall cost, City funds available, and the existing funding gap that potentially could be met through outside funding. In addition, potential outside funding sources should be identified, if known.
- 6. This documentation should be submitted to the Director of GMFA during the annual budget process.
- 7. The Director of GMFA will collate this information into an Annual Grants & Financial Assistance Strategic Plan that will be presented to the City Council in conjunction with a budget presentation at a study session.
- 8. The development of this Plan will assist City departments and divisions, including the GFMA Department, to match identified needs and their solutions with funding opportunities that arise on a regular basis. In addition, this will pre-position the City to submit an application when Notices of Funding Availability are published.

#### PRE-APPLICATION & RENEWALS

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that applications or renewals for funding submitted by or on behalf of the City are aligned with an established City priority, are not in competition with other internally-prepared applications or external applications supported by the City, and the City is prepared and willing to meet all of the applicable terms and conditions.

#### Policy:

The City of Spokane recognizes that grants and other financial assistance provide significant resources to enhance the quality and quantity of its public services, facilities and infrastructure. The City will seek financial assistance for activities that further core City functions or that fund programs which are in the best interests of its citizens. In most circumstances, the benefits and impact of financial assistance will be examined prior to application and the City will decline submitting applications for funding determined not to meet this criteria, or which comes with requirements that the City is unable or unwilling to fulfill. Funding applications and requests for renewals may be completed, signed, approved and submitted by department heads and division directors only after receiving authorization from the City's Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) or her/his designee.

- 1. Upon identification of a potential funding source under consideration, a City employee will create a record in the City's Award Management System indicating that the funding source is under consideration and assigning the award to a project. If there is a matching requirement, this should be noted in the narrative Notes section, including the potential sources of match.
- 2. A notification will automatically be generated by the system to the appropriate department and/or division head as well as GMFA Department.
- 3. The GMFA Department will review the funding announcement and proposed project to verify:
  - a. Alignment with existing, written strategic plans as provided under Section 2 of this Guide;
  - b. No other internal department is also considering the opportunity;

- c. No known external agencies are also considering applying and whether the City has pledged to support these efforts;
- d. No other concerns can be identified at this stage.
- 4. Any concerns identified through this initial vetting process will be discussed with the employee who has identified the funding opportunity and the department or division head, as appropriate.
- 5. The Director of GMFA will include a listing of awards under consideration in the Weekly Grants Management & Financial Assistance Report produced each Monday.
- 6. If the appropriate department or division head approves moving forward with the application, the employee responsible for preparing the application shall change the status in the Award Management System to reflect that he/she intends to apply for the award. All status fields should be completed, including the proposed source(s) of the match, if applicable, and whether any new positions will be added. In addition, any project team members should be added so they will receive notifications about the status.
- 7. A notification will automatically be generated by the system to the appropriate department and/or division head as well as to the GMFA Department.
- 8. Upon receipt, the GMFA Department will update the status in the Weekly Grants Management & Financial Assistance Report provided to the Cabinet via the Chief Financial Officer and City Council.
- 9. Any questions or concerns will be communicated to the Director of GMFA and the appropriate division or department head.
- 10. After a five (5) day review period, the Director of GMFA will approve or disprove the application based on feedback and discussion in response to the weekly report.

#### APPLICATION SUBMISSION

#### Purpose:

The Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) Department is responsible for tracking and reporting on all grant and financial assistance activity for the City of Spokane and monitoring compliance. The purpose of this policy is to provide the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance with the information needed to ensure accurate tracking and reporting as well as compliance monitoring.

#### Policy:

The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall have sole authority to approve the submission of grant applications, unless the funding agency specifically requires legislative approval, in which case, the Director of GMFA will recommend approval to the City Council who shall provide additional formal approval. All applications submitted should provide for full cost recovery to the extent possible and be signed by the authorized City personnel.

#### Procedure:

- 1. Before submitting a funding application, City departments or divisions intending to submit an application should follow the policy and procedural requirements in Section One: Administrative/Maintenance of Award System Registrations, and Section Two: Pre-Application & Renewals, as specified in this Guide.
- 2. If granted AOR status for purposes of submission, the department or division employee preparing the application may electronically sign the application and required certifications and/or assurances. The application may also be signed by the department director or division head.
- 3. Once completed, a copy of the application must be uploaded into the Award Management System and the status of the award record changed to submitted.
- 4. Completion of applications is the responsibility of the applicant department or division. Staff in the Department of GMFA may provide technical assistance with the application, as needed.
- 5. Departments should coordinate with their assigned staff in the Accounting Department on the budget development and application budgets should be developed so as to ensure full cost recovery to the extent possible.

#### SECTION THREE: AWARD ACCEPTANCE

#### AWARD ACCEPTANCE

#### Purpose:

Award agreements are legal contracts. It is the City's responsibility to carry out the funded project and/or activities associated with an award to accomplish its objectives, while adhering to all of the terms and conditions prescribed by the funding agency. Failure to do so increases the City's exposure to legal liability and compromises current and future grant and financial assistance funding for all departments. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all relevant City departments and divisions are made aware of award notices in a timely fashion and standardize the procedure for, and document the acceptance or decline of grant and financial assistance awards made to the City.

#### Policy:

All grant and financial assistance awards made to the City of Spokane shall be reviewed and approved by the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance prior to formal acceptance, approval and signature by the City of Spokane.

The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall be provided a copy of any grant or financial assistance award documents within two days of receipt for review of all associated terms and conditions. Following the Department of GMFA review, the Legal and Accounting Departments shall be forwarded a copy from GMFA with a recommendation of acceptance or rejection. Upon concurrence of the Legal and Accounting Departments, the award must be formally accepted by the City Council unless subject to the City's Minor Contract Authorization Policy & Procedure.

- Upon receipt of an award notification, a copy of the award letter and/or contract must be uploaded into the Award Management System by the recipient department or division. If the contract is over the minor contract threshold as established in the City's <u>Minor Contract Authorization Policy & Procedure</u>, the original documents requiring signature shall also be forwarded to the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance. The assigned staff member in the recipient department or division shall complete an Agenda Sheet in OnBase. The agenda item type selected should be "Contract – Grant/FA." The submitting department will be Grants & Financial Assistance.
- 2. The person completing the Agenda Sheet must notify the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance when it is completed.
- If the award is under the minor contract threshold as established in the City's Minor Contract Authorization Policy & Procedure, the original award letter and/or contract and the completed Minor Contract Summary Sheet shall be forwarded to the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.
- 4. The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will identify any concerns or recommend acceptance.
- 5. Upon acceptance, The Department of GMFA will coordinate with the Legal Department for a legal review and approval, as well as the Accounting Department and obtain their signatures on the Summary Sheet and on the contract documents, if required.
- 6. In cases where a local or other match is required, or there are associated unrecovered costs, the Agenda Sheet shall also specify the source of funding by accounting name, program code, title or other identifying characteristics.
- 7. In those circumstances where local or other match commitments are made by an entity other than the City of Spokane, a formal written agreement whereby the outside entity commits to meet the match requirement shall also be executed unless the outside entity will also be receiving pass through funding under the award, in which case the match commitment shall be included in the formal written funding agreement between the City and the outside agency as a term and condition of funding.
- 8. If over the minor contract threshold, the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will forward the contract or other award document to the City Clerk for consideration by the City Council and signature.
- If under the minor contract threshold, the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will forward the contract or other award document and the Minor Contract Summary Sheet back to the Award Manager for signature by the division head or department director.
- 10. The recipient department or division shall forward the documents onto the City Clerk.
- 11. The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will attend the Advance City Council Briefing and the department director or division head receiving the award should be in attendance also.
- 12. The City Clerk shall assign an OPR number and file the documents and send electronic copies to Grants Management & Financial Assistance, Accounting and the recipient department or division.
- 13. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will upload the electronic copy into the Award Management System.
- 14. The City Clerk will forward the executed award document(s) to the funding agency, if provided. Otherwise, the recipient department or division shall forward the document or submit electronic acceptance. When a fully executed copy is returned, the Award Manager shall replace the award document in the Award Management System with a copy of the fully executed document(s) and ensure that the City Clerk has the final original signed document.

#### AWARD MANAGEMENT TEAM

#### Purpose:

To facilitate the successful implementation of an award project, an Award Management Team will be identified. The individual members and their associated responsibilities and deadlines will be tracked in the Award Management System and used as an oversight tool for the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

#### Policy:

An Award Management Team will be established upon acceptance of an award. The individual members, their associated responsibilities and deadlines, will be established and the award implementation plan and award terms and conditions will be reviewed. This implementation plan will include, at a minimum, the goals and objectives to be achieved, the project timeline, milestone events, an anticipated expenditure schedule, as well as roles and responsibilities. This will be documented in the Award Management System and monitored by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

#### Procedure:

- 1. Upon notification of an award, staff in the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall convene an orientation meeting to include the Award Manager from the recipient department or division and any other assigned staff, and the Accounting Manager and any other assigned staff, as well as other key individuals.
- 2. The award implementation plan and terms and conditions will be reviewed at this meeting, as well as the approved budget. The goals and objectives will be identified, as well as the associated timelines; milestone events, anticipated expenditures schedule, and roles and responsibilities will be identified and documented in the Award Management System.
- 3. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will assign the project management team in the Award Management System and task out deadlines.

#### **BUDGETING & FINANCIAL SETUP**

#### Purpose:

To identify the process of establishing a budget associated with a grant or financial assistance funded project.

#### Policy:

The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance determine whether an award made to the City of Spokane shall be classified as a federal, state, pass-through or other grant or contract, or other designation. The Accounting Department shall be responsible for assigning unique program numbers to each individual grant or financial assistance award to ensure that funds are not comingled with other funds and setting up the proper revenue and expense accounts in the City's financial system.

#### Procedure:

Once an award has been approved by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance and an award type determination has been made, the Accounting Manager in the Accounting Department will set up the proper revenue and expense accounts in the accounting system. A unique program number will be assigned to each award, which enables reports to be run on individual awards.

#### SECTION FOUR: POST-AWARD ADMINISTRATION

#### **REVENUE AND RECEIPTS**

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to identify the avenues through which award funds can be accepted and received.

#### Policy:

The default method of payment selected for all awards of financial assistance shall be reimbursement, unless the award is for an immediate, one-time expenditure or the only method of payment allowed by the funder is an advance payment. The basis for selecting another method of payment shall be discussed with the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) who must approve the alternate method of payment prior to selection or draw down. Cash reimbursement shall be made only after actual costs have been incurred and the expense recorded in the general ledger or City payroll accrued in the payroll subsidiary ledger. All funds received shall be recorded as revenue in the grant program.

The City of Spokane's preferred method of receipt is Electronic Fund Transfers (EFTs). EFTs are wired to the City Treasurer and automatically deposited into the appropriate account. When a check is received rather than an EFT, the check shall be taken to the Accounting Department for deposit within twenty four (24) hours of receipt.

#### PROGRAM INCOME

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to identify the treatment of program income associated with grant and financial assistance activity.

#### Definition:

<u>Program income</u> is gross income earned by the City of Spokane or its subrecipients that is directly generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of a grant or other award of financial assistance during the period of performance.

Program income includes, but is not limited to, income from fees for services performed, the use of rental or real or personal property acquired under grants and financial assistance, the sale of commodities or items fabricated under a grant or award of financial assistance, license fees and royalties on patents and copy rights and principal and interest on loans made with award funds.

Interest earned on advances of Federal funds is not program income, nor are rebates, credits, discounts and interest earned on any of them unless specified in the agreement or associated program regulations.

#### Policy:

Program income shall be recorded and used in accordance with program requirements, the Federal OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Federal awarding agency laws, program regulations and the provisions of the contract or grant agreement pertaining to the program.

City departments/divisions may earn program income to defray program costs and any net proceeds (income received less the cost to generate the income) must be deducted from the allowable award expenditures <u>before</u> billing the funding agency for the net expenditures. Program income must be used for the purposes of and under the conditions applicable to the award. Unless specified by the awarding agency, program income must be used as earned and expended as soon as possible.

With prior funding agency approval, program income may be used to meet any non-award matching funds requirements or for additional allowable and allocable award activities. This approval must be in writing and documented in the Award Management System.

- The designated Award Manager in the department or division receiving the award is responsible for contacting the Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) and Accounting Departments to discuss the activity that will generate program income and its relationship to the grant or contract and how the program income shall be recorded. If this is known at the time the award is received, this discussion should occur during the initial meeting of the Award Management Team.
- 2. Dependent upon the awarding agency requirements, program income may be used in one of three methods:
  - a. **Deduction** deduct program income from total allowable costs to determine the net allowable cost on which the funder's share of costs is based. Program income shall be used for current cost.
    - i. EXAMPLE: The initial project budget was \$100,000. \$10,000 of program income is earned. The adjusted project budget amount from the sponsor is reduced to \$90,000 after gross program income is taken into account. Total project costs remain at \$100,000. (\$90,000 on the parent budget and \$10,000 on the

program income sub-budget.)

- b. **Addition** add program income to the funds committed to the award agreement. Program income shall be used for the purposes and under the conditions of the award agreement.
  - i. EXAMPLE: the initial project budget was \$100,000. \$10,000 of program income is generated. The total project costs may now be \$110,000. (\$100,000 expensed on the parent budget and \$10,000 expensed on the program income sub-budget.)
- c. **Cost Sharing** Program income may be used to meet the cost sharing or matching requirement of the award agreement. The amount of the award remains the same.
  - i. EXAMPLE: The initial project budget was \$100,000 with cost sharing/match committed at \$20,000. \$10,000 of program income is generated. The expenditure of the program income may be used to account for \$10,000 of the committed cost sharing.

If the award is silent on the treatment of program income, the Addition Method generally applies and is the default method for applying program income. The GMFA Department shall be the final arbiter as to how to record the program income. This shall be documented in the Award Management System and the Accounting Manager notified.

Regardless of the accounting method used, program income may be used only for allowable and allocable costs in accordance with the applicable cost principles and the terms and conditions of the award.

- 3. The Accounting Department shall be responsible for depositing program income and calculating net program expenditures after using program income when preparing drawdown requests and financial reports. Program income shall be recorded under a separate revenue code under the grant program number if using the Deduction or Addition method. It shall be coded under the match program number if using the Cost Sharing method.
- 4. The Award Manager in the recipient department or division shall monitor program income levels when approving drawdown requests and reviewing financial reports.
- 5. Unless otherwise allowed in writing by the awarding agency, program income funds remaining in the project or program income account after the project has terminated will be returned to the awarding agency. If the Award Manager in the department or division receiving the award wishes to use these funds to further project or program objectives, a no cost extension of the award should be requested. This request should be entered into the Award Management System and the GMFA Department notified for approval prior to the funding termination date.
- 6. Unless funding regulations or award terms and conditions specify otherwise, there is no obligation to the funding agency for program income earned after the end of the award period. However, income earned during the award period but received up to sixty (60) days after the end of the award period must be treated as program income received during the award period.

#### DRAWDOWNS

#### Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all drawdowns or other reimbursement requests made under grants or financial assistance awards are fully supported and reimbursements are only requested for necessary, reasonable, allowable and allocable costs.

#### Policy:

Drawdown or other reimbursement requests shall be prepared by the Accounting Department with supporting documentation to verify the allowability and allocability of the expenses. The reports will be verified for accuracy and compliance and approved by the Award Manager in the City department or division receiving the award and/or the Grants Management & Financial Assistance (GMFA) Department prior to the drawdown or reimbursement request being made or submitted. The Accounting Department shall submit the drawdown request, unless the filing of a financial report constitutes a reimbursement request, in which case the Award Manager and/or GMFA Department shall be responsible for submittal as identified based on risk status.

- 1. The assigned personnel in the Accounting Department as designated in the initial Award Management Team assignments shall prepare the drawdown or reimbursement request using the form or system designated in the award documents.
- 2. The request shall include an analysis and documentation of program income received as of the request date. Program income shall be applied prior to calculating the drawdown amount.

- 3. A report from the City's accounting system documenting revenues, expenditures and program incomes received, as well as a budget vs. expenditures report and other support documentation shall be attached to the drawdown or reimbursement request prepared on the form or printed out from the designated system.
- 4. The drawdown or reimbursement request shall be uploaded into the Award Management System for review and approval by the Award Manager and/or the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance based on risk status.
- 5. The Award Manager and/or personnel in Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall review and approve the drawdown request in the Award Management System, and in hard copy, if required by the funder within 24 hours.
- 6. The drawdown request will be submitted by the Accounting Department after approval and a copy of the final submitted request and submission date shall be uploaded and noted in the Award Management System.
- 7. If a financial report constitutes a reimbursement request, the report will be submitted by the Award Manager, who shall also ensure a final copy of the submitted request and submission date is uploaded and noted in the Award Management System.

#### EXPENDITURES AND DISBURSEMENTS

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all expenditures paid under grants or financial assistance awards are necessary, reasonable, allowable and allocable costs and supported by source documentation.

#### Policy:

City departments/offices shall use applicable Federal OMB cost principles, agency program regulations and the terms of award and subaward agreements to determine the necessity, reasonableness, allowability, and allocability of costs. A cost is necessary if it is required to effectively carry out the funded program and activity and meet the associated goals and objectives. A cost is reasonable if it does not exceed what a prudent person would incur under similar circumstances. A cost is only allowable if adequately documented and supported by accounting records and source documentation, such as purchase orders, vouchers, invoices, payroll allocation reports, payroll summaries, timesheets, etc. A cost is allocable to the extent the goods or services benefit the program or activity.

The specific requirements for activities allowed or unallowed are unique to each program and are found in the laws, regulations and the provisions of the contract or grant agreement.

#### Procedure:

- 1. The Award Manager in the department receiving the grant or financial assistance award shall review and approve in writing all invoices and expenditures charged to the award. All invoices submitted must be accompanied by supporting documentation sufficient so that the Award Manager may verify the necessity, reasonableness, allowability and allocability of the costs
- 2. The Award Manager's review shall include a determination that the costs are consistent with policies, regulations and procedures of the City of Spokane and verify that the expenses are not included as a cost or used to meet cost sharing or matching requirements of any other financial assistance program, unless specifically allowed.
- 3. The Award Manager shall sign the invoice or voucher and submit it to the Accounting Department for processing.
- 4. The Accounting Department is responsible for processing the payment in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and City of Spokane policy and procedures.
- 5. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall advise and assist the Award Managers in verifying the necessity, reasonableness, allowability and allocability of the costs, if needed.
- 6. If an award is deemed high risk by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance, staff in this department may have final responsibility and sign-off on the necessity, reasonableness, allowability and allocability of the costs prior to processing by the Accounting Department.

#### MATCHING OR COST-SHARING CONTRIBUTIONS

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that any matching or cost-share contributions required and reported under grant and financial assistance awards meet the requirements of Federal OMB Circulars, award conditions and terms that are applicable.

#### Definition:

Cost sharing or matching means the portion of project costs not paid by grant or other financial assistance funds.

#### Policy:

All matching or cost-sharing contributions (including cash and third party in-kind) shall be fully documented and verifiable in City financial records to the extent possible and in the Award Management System. The contributions shall be tracked and monitored to ensure that they cannot be included as contributions toward, or paid under, any other grant or financial assistance project or program unless expressly allowed and verified by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance. The contributions shall be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient accomplishment of the project or program objectives and must be allowable and provided for in the approved award budget.

Documentation of all matching and cost-sharing contributions shall be maintained in the Award Management system and will be included as supporting backup documentation for financial reports and/or drawdown of funds.

#### Procedure:

- 1. The Award Manager is responsible for obtaining supporting records to document the allowability, allocability and reasonableness of any and all match provided by third parties and/or in-kind match. This documentation shall be uploaded to the Award Management System and the Accounting Department notified to ensure that they are included in any financial reports.
- 2. Any cash match or City contributions will be fully documented in the City financial system and supporting documentation provided by the Accounting Department when financial reports are prepared.

#### PROCUREMENT

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to clarify that all procurement activity associated with grant or other financial assistance funds must be consistent with City of Spokane Municipal Code Chapter 07.06, administrative policy and procedures, and all of the provisions, terms and conditions of the grant or financial assistance award.

#### Policy:

The Award Manager in the City department or division receiving the grant is responsible for complying with all of the provisions, terms and conditions of the grant or financial assistance award, including all applicable terms and conditions of the funding requirements relating to the acquisition process used. The City of Spokane's Purchasing Policy and Procedures as codified under Spokane Municipal Code Chapter 07.06 as well as the administrative policy and procedures titled, Purchases of Goods and Services under the Public Bid Dollar Thresholds and Purchasing Cards, shall be followed, provided that they conform to applicable Federal, State and local law and regulations and standards identified. If there is a discrepancy between the City's policy and procedures and the award regulations and provisions, the most restrictive requirement must be followed.

- 1. The Award Manager should plan on completing a competitive solicitation process.
- If the City is a grantee or subgrantee under a Federal grant or other award of financial assistance, all procurement of goods and services from both vendors and subrecipients is subject to a competitive process which must be documented. If the Award Manager in the recipient department or division determines that competitive procurement is infeasible, or otherwise deems that it is not required, he/she shall contact the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for technical assistance and approval prior to submitting a requisition to the Purchasing Section and/or entering into a purchase contract or agreement.
- 2. The Award Manager must research all award provisions as related to the intended procurement and extract all applicable language (specifications, terms and conditions, grant requirements, etc.) which must be included in the competitive solicitation document (Invitation to Bid, RFP, RFQ or RFI) to ensure compliance. All relevant information, provisions, restrictions, terms and conditions of the award (including any pertinent reference numbers such as, but not limited to, the CFDA number Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number) must be included on the requisition and/or the Project Request Sheet (Project or Professional Services Request Form Requisition) at the time that the project is submitted to the Purchasing Section to initiate the procurement process.
- 3. If the purchase is being made under a Federal grant or award of financial assistance, the Award Manager shall check and verify suspension or debarment via the Federal System for Award Management (www.sam.gov) to

determine if the vendor/contractor (including any subcontractors) is ineligible for the award of the contract and document the research and certification effort in the Award Management System. Verification of active CCR registration in www.sam.gov shall also be verified and documented for all subawardees.

- 4. Additionally, if the purchase is being made under a Federal grant or award of financial assistance, and the bid specifications provide for a specific brand name, or other requirements that limit competition, the specifications must be approved by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance before being published or distributed.
- 5. If a sole source is declared under a grant or other award of financial assistance, this must be approved by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance in writing prior to the contract or purchase being completed. Documentation of this approval will be maintained in the Award Management System.

#### SUPPLANTING

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to protect the City from the revocation of grant or other financial assistance funds and exposure to legal liability associated with improper use of funds.

#### Policy:

Grant and other financial assistance funds awarded to the City of Spokane can only be used to supplement (augment) current funding and shall not be used to supplant (replace) an existing expense so that local funds can be used for another purpose unless explicitly identified as allowable in writing by the awarding entity and approved by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

#### Procedure:

Award Managers and Accounting staff preparing and establishing budgets for grants and financial assistance awards shall ensure that funds are used to support new program/project costs and not to support ongoing costs previously or currently supported with local funds. If any questions or concerns arise in this regard, the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall be contacted for final guidance.

#### AMENDMENTS

#### Purpose:

Amendments to awards, whether issued in the form of an official contract amendment or more informally in the form of a letter from the awarding agency, are legal contracts. As such, it is the City's responsibility to carry out the funded project and/or activities associated with an award in compliance with all revised or new terms and conditions contained in the amendment. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all relevant City departments and divisions are made aware of award amendments notices in a timely fashion and standardize the procedure for, and document the acceptance or declination of amendments of awards made to the City.

#### Policy:

Awards are often amended to shift allocated funds from one cost category to another, increase or decrease the budget, change the performance period or to alter the programmatic requirements. All award amendments are subject to approval by the recipient department or division director and Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance. Furthermore, amendments must follow the City's Minor Contract Authorization Policy and Procedure or be approved by the City Council.

If additional funding is awarded, Award Managers should use caution to ensure that no award funds are expended prior to acceptance of the Amendment and budget approval and appropriation by the City Council.

- 1. When requesting a programmatic amendment, rebudget, or an extension to the award period, the Award Manager, shall input the request into the Award Management System for approval by the Department or Division Director and the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.
- 2. When an amendment is received, the Award Manager shall upload the document into the Award Management System within two days for approval/acceptance by the Department or Division Director, Accountant and the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

- 3. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will forward the document to the City's Legal Department for review with a recommendation of acceptance and rejection.
- 4. If the amendment meets the requirements of the minor contract process as defined City's Minor Contract Authorization Policy and Procedure, the amendment may be signed by the Department or Division Director after all of the approvals are received and a copy of the fully signed around document shall be provided to the City Clerk and uploaded into the Award Management System.
- 5. If the amendment does not meet the requirements of the minor contract process, the Award Manager shall prepare and file the City Council agenda sheet and route it for signature.
- 6. The Accounting Department shall prepare an EBO, if needed.
- 7. The agenda packet shall go before the City Council standing committee and the full City Council for approval.
- 8. The City Clerk's Office shall sign and attest the grant, obtain the Mayor's signature, scan and file the documents and distribute electronic copies to the recipient department, Accounting, and Grants Management & Financial Assistance.
- 9. The Award Manager shall submit the signed documents to the funding agency, and upon receipt of a fully signed around copy of the agreement, provide the original copy to the City Clerk and upload a copy into the Award Management System.

#### PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to properly identify, track, transfer and dispose of property acquired under a grant or other award of financial assistance. This policy applies to fixed assets (tangible, nonexpendable, personal property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of \$5,000 or more per unit), as well as non-consumable supplies and materials such as furniture, computers, printers or other items that would be considered small and attractive assets

#### Definitions:

**Fixed Assets:** Tangible or intangible, nonexpendable property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of \$5,000 or more per unit. This includes land, buildings (facilities), equipment and intellectual property (including software) whether acquired by purchase, construction, manufacture, lease-purchase, exchange, or through capital leases; and additions, improvements, modifications, replacements, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations or alternations to capital assets that materially increase their value or useful life (not ordinary repairs and maintenance).

**Non-Consumable Supplies and Materials/Small and Attractive Assets:** Items that fall below the City's capitalization level of \$5,000 and are particularly vulnerable to loss. These items include, at a minim, all sets with a unit cost of \$300 or more in the following commodity codes: (6651) - optical devices, binoculars, telescopes, infrared viewers and rangefinders; (6710-6730) - cameras and photographic projection equipment; (7012) - desktop computers; (7013) - laptops and notebook computers; (7014) - tablets and smart phones; (7730) - television sets, DVD players, Blue-ray players and video cameras; and (major group 10) – weapons, firearms, signal guns and accessories. This listing is not all-inclusive and additional items with a unit cost of \$300 or more that are vulnerable to loss as identified by the department or division receiving the award, Accounting Department and/or Department of Grants Management and Financial Assistance.

#### Policy:

All property purchased under grants or other awards of financial assistance that meet the City's definition of fixed assets and all non-consumable supplies and materials/small and attractive assets shall be subject to the following:

- Property Records All property purchased or otherwise received under grants and awards of financial assistance should be tagged and must be entered into the Fixed Asset System maintained by the Accounting Department with a description of the property, serial number or other identification number, the source of funding for the property (including the award identification number), who holds title, the acquisition date, and cost of the property, percentage of federal participation in the project costs (if acquired under a federal award), location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition data, including the date of disposal and sale price of the property.
- Physical Inventory A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with the Fixed Asset System annually and upon the closeout of the award. The inventory is subject to verification from the Department of Grants Management and Financial Assistance, other Finance staff, auditors and other third parties engaged by Finance.
- 3. Control System Any loss, damage or theft to any of the property must be reported to the Accounting Department and Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance within 48 hours of discovery. A follow-up investigation will be implemented by the department or division in control of the asset with the support of the Accounting Department and Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

- 4. **Maintenance** The department or division in control of the property shall ensure adequate maintenance procedures are implemented to keep the property in good condition.
- 5. Disposition When original or replacement property acquired under a grant or award of financial assistance is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or previously supported by the funding agency, the department or division seeking to dispose of the property shall contact the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for guidance and approval. GMFA shall ensure that any property sold, passed through to another entity, or otherwise disposed of, is done in accordance with applicable awarding regulations and procedures, including the notification of the funding agency, when appropriate for approval or further direction. In addition, GMFA shall advise the department or division controlling the asset and the Accounting Department of any restrictions related to the income received from the sale.
- 6. Replacement If property is damaged, no longer in working condition, or other circumstances arise and it is replaced by the manufacturer under warranty, the original property should be noted as disposed in the Fixed Asset System and the replacement property entered with all of the identifying award information used for the original asset. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance and Accounting Manager shall be notified of these instances within 48 hours of occurrence.

#### Procedure:

- Upon paying an invoice for property purchased under grant and other financial assistance awards meeting the definition of fixed assets or Non-Consumable Supplies and Materials/Small and Attractive Assets above, the Accounting Department will forward an asset tag to the department or division in control of the asset and verify all of the identifying information required to be entered into the Fixed Asset System.
- 2. If property is received that is passed through to the City by another entity under a grant or financial assistance award, if not previously provided, a copy of the award agreement or pass-through award information should be entered into the Award Management System as a new grant and the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance notified. The award will be processed as provided for under the Award Acceptance policy.
- 3. The entry into the Fixed Asset System should identify the status as GRA if the property is purchased or passed through under a federal or state grant and meets the definition of a fixed asset.
- 4. The entry into the Fixed Asset System should identify the status as SNA if the property is purchased or passed through under a federal or state grant and meets the definition of non-consumable supplies or small and attractive assets.
- 5. The Accountant assigned to the controlling department or division shall coordinate with the department or division to conduct an inventory of its property annually. This will include providing a list of all property that the department or division is responsible for as identified in the Fixed Asset System.
- Any known loss, damage, theft or other material changes in the status of the property shall be made known to the Accounting Manager and Department of Grants Management and Financial Assistance by the controlling department. This includes changes in location and/or obsolescence.
- If the controlling department or division intends to dispose of any property purchased under a grant or financial assistance award, the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall be notified as soon as possible for guidance and approval.
- 8. The Department of GMFA shall review the awarding regulations and procedures, including notifying the funding agency when appropriate, for approval or further direction.
- 9. The Department of GMFA shall approve the disposition in writing and document it in the Central Award System. GMFA will also advise the department or division controlling the asset and the Accounting Department of any restrictions related to the income received from the sale, including returning sale proceeds to the funding agency, and follow-up to ensure that appropriate internal controls are in place to comply with the provisions.
- 10. The Accounting Manager shall be responsible for ensuring that the ultimate disposition data, including the disposition date and sale price of the property is entered into the Fixed Asset System.

#### TRAVEL UNDER FEDERAL GRANTS

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all travel charged to federal grants is allowable and in compliance with federal travel requirements and specific grant award guidelines.

#### Policy:

All travel under federal grants shall be conducted in accordance with City travel policy and federal travel guidelines, as well as the grant program requirements. If a difference between the City reimbursement rate and the allowable federal reimbursement rate as defined by the General Services Administration (GSA) exists, the more restrictive of the two shall

be applied and charged to the grant. The Award Manager shall be responsible for ensuring that all grant travel is allowable under the grant and pre-approved by the federal granting agency, when required. Such approval shall be requested and received in writing and maintained in the official grant file. In addition, the Department of GMFA shall review and approve all travel charged to federal grants prior to the submission of a reimbursement request to confirm the allowability and allocability of the expense to the grant.

#### Procedure:

- 1. City staff performing travel under federal grants shall complete a travel request form and include required backup documentation in accordance with City Travel Policy.
- The travel request form shall be submitted to the employee's supervisor for approval as well as the assigned grant program manager who shall verify the allowability, allocability and reasonableness of the travel under the federal grant, including securing prior written approval of the funding agency, if required.
- 3. The program manager shall upload a copy of the travel request and any prior approvals obtained from the funding agency into the Award Management System and notify the Department of GMFA that a secondary approval is required.
- 4. The Department of GMFA shall perform a secondary review of the travel request to ensure that the travel is allowable, allocable and reasonable under the grant award and any required prior approvals have been appropriately obtained and documented.
- 5. A final review of the actual travel expenditures shall be completed by the program manager and Department of GMFA prior to submission of a reimbursement request to the federal funding agency. This primary and secondary review shall be documented in the Award Management System.

#### MONITORING & COMPLIANCE

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all grant and financial assistance activities are managed according to the City's Grants Management & Financial Assistance Guide, to ensure full compliance and strategic management of current and future grant and financial assistance awards throughout the entire award lifecycle, and to reduce the City's exposure and legal liability with respect to mismanagement or lack of compliance with grant and financial assistance policies, requirements and associated regulations.

#### Policy:

City departments and divisions that apply for, and receive, grant and other financial assistance awards are responsible for managing their funded projects and programs in compliance with all award terms and conditions as well as associated federal, state and City regulations and policies and procedures.

The City's Director of Grants Management and Financial Assistance oversees the Department of Grants Management and Financial Assistance and in this capacity oversees fiscal and programmatic accountability and compliance for any and all grant and financial assistance awards made to the City of Spokane and its respective divisions and departments.

The City has adopted a risk-based approach to grants and financial assistance monitoring and compliance which is developed and administered by, the Director and staff of Grants Management & Financial Assistance Department. The criteria and associated risk status, as well as the involvement GMFA Department is identified below:

#### Full Compliance/Low-Risk (Green) Status

- Initial Grant File Review Completed by GMFA
- Grant File Complete
- Recurring Grant Program/Award
- Managed by Experienced Personnel
- Clear Performance Goals (Program/Financial), Indicators and Milestones which are being Measured and Met
- No concerns identified by GMFA or the department managing the grant program
- Recent monitoring review/visit with no concerns identified

The City Department receiving the grant uploads grant documents into the Award Management System as specified by the Grants Management & Financial Assistance Guide. Grant files are reviewed periodically by the GMFA Department for compliance with program and other funding regulations. GMFA Department provides technical assistance to the recipient department as requested.

#### Under Review/Medium-Risk (Yellow) Status

- Monitoring Concerns Identified
- New Personnel Managing Grant (Program/Financial)
- Significant Match Requirements
- New Reporting Requirements
- Significant Subawards or Contracts or Eligibility Requirements
- Unclear Performance Goals (Program/Financial), Indicators and Milestones or Identified Goals, Indicators and Milestones Behind Schedule or Not Being Measured
- Federal Program Identified as Higher Risk in Compliance Supplement

The GMFA Department shall perform a quarterly review of the award file as uploaded in the Award Management System to verify compliance and technical assistance needs. Additionally, the GMFA Department shall provide technical assistance to the recipient department as requested.

Out of Compliance/High-Risk (Red) Status

- Audit Findings
- Monitoring Findings
- Missed Deadlines
- Reporting Errors
- Complex/New Award
- Lack of Performance Goals (Program/Financial), Indicators and Milestones or Identified Goals, Indicators and Milestones Not Being Met

The GMFA Department shall provide ongoing technical assistance and training to the receipient department throughout the award lifecycle. Additionally, the GMFA Department shall provide a second layer of review and oversight throughout the award lifecycle, including but not limited to, reviewing and approving financial and programmatic reports prior to submission, monitoring achievement of performance milestones and goals, and reviewing internal controls and implementing new processes and systems. The review and oversight of the GMFA Department shall be documented in the Award Management System and required certifications may not be signed until the review conducted by the GMFA Department is completed and fully documented.

#### Procedure:

- 1. The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will review existing internal controls and establish new and/or strengthened controls when necessary to safeguard federal, state and local/private grant and financial assistance assets and ensure their proper use.
- 2. The Director of GMFA shall establish written policies and procedures that clarify responsibilities for researching funding opportunities, submitting applications and accepting and administering grants and financial assistance awards.
- 3. The Department of GMFA shall develop and manage systems to coordinate the identification of funding resources and track and manage the entire lifecycle of the grants and other financial assistance awards.
- 4. The Director of GMFA shall establish written policies and procedures for adoption by the Spokane City Council to ensure compliance with funding requirements as defined by funding agencies, the Code of Federal Regulations and the State of Washington.
- 5. The Director and staff in GMFA will assist Award Managers and their respective division and department directors with the interpretation and application of City, state, federal and other funder policies and requirements.
- 6. The Director and staff in GMFA will provide regular compliance reviews of all financial assistance and grant awards to determine if they are in compliance with applicable federal, state and local laws, City policies and award documents.
- When conducting compliance reviews, the Department of GMFA will implement a risk-based approach and categorize awards in one of three statuses: 1) Full Compliance/Low Risk; 2) Under Review/Medium Risk; and 3) Out-of-Compliance/High Risk. Based on the criteria developed, division or department heads or Award Managers may also recommend specific awards be classified in Medium Risk or High Risk Status.

#### SECTION FIVE: SUB-AWARD CONTRACTING & MONITORING

#### SUBAWARDS

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that subawards are correctly identified under grants and other awards of financial assistance and award and City requirements are appropriately included in the contracts.

#### Policy:

City departments or divisions intending to enter into contracts for goods and services under grants and financial assistance awards shall determine whether the person or entity they intend to contract with is a vendor or a subrecipient and retain this written determination in the Award Management System. If technical assistance is needed in this regard, the Award Manager shall consult with the Department of Grants Management and Financial Assistance.

All subawards entered into under awards of federal financial assistance shall be made only after completion of a fully documented competitive selection process, unless otherwise approved by the Department of Grants Management and Financial Assistance and written approval obtained from the funder as determined by GMFA.

All subawards entered into under grants and other financial assistance awards, and any amendments thereto, shall be prepared on a template provided by the Grants Management and Financial Assistance Department and submitted to GMFA for approval. GMFA will coordinate with the Legal Department for a legal review and signature. The approval and signatures of GFMA and the Legal Department shall be obtained prior to the contract being sent to the subrecipient agent.

- 1. The Award Manager is responsible for ensuring that a fully documented competitive selection process is implemented for any awards made under federal grants and financial assistance awards and any other awards that contain this requirement.
- 2. If a competitive process is not possible or will not be conducted, this must be approved by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance and written approval must be obtained from the funder as determined by GMFA prior to a contract being developed. Simply identifying a subrecipient by name in an application does not constitute funding agency approval of a non-competitive process.
- 3. The Award Manager is responsible for determining whether the entity or person he/she intends to contract with is classified as a vendor or subrecipient. A Vendor/Subrecipient Determination Checklist form may be obtained from the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for this purpose. GMFA will also provide additional technical assistance upon request.
- 4. The Award Manager shall be responsible for submitting a Subrecipient Contract Request Form to GMFA.
- 5. The GMFA Department shall prepare the subrecipient contract and ensure that the contract includes any and all pass through requirements, including required federal award information, if applicable, and audit requirements. GMFA.
- 6. The subrecipient contract shall contain the source of the funds being awarded, including CFDA number, if applicable, and the DUNS number of the subrecipient.
- 7. The Department of GMFA shall verify the DUNS number and active SAM registration of the subrecipient if federal award dollars are involved.
- 8. A clear, well-defined scope of work, outcomes and performance measures, as well as reporting and billing timelines must be included in the agreement. Additionally, the agreement must specify the particular records the subrecipient must maintain and submit to the City in order to assist the City in meeting its recordkeeping and reporting requirements. If the subrecipient may receive program income as a result of the project, the disposition of the income received must also be addressed.
- 9. Reporting responsibilities for subrecipients that receive or purchase equipment or other capitalized items with federal funds, including providing a copy of their inventory annually. The inventory must include the CFDA number of the grant which purchased the equipment, if applicable, and other award identification information, description of the property, serial or other identification number, the source of funding, who holds title, the acquisition date, cost of the property, percentage of federal participation in the costs (if acquired under a federal award), location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition data, including the date of disposal and sale price of the property.
- 10. GMFA will coordinate with the Legal Department for review and an original contract with appropriate signatures approving as to form will be transmitted to the subrecipient for signature.
- 11. The recipient department or division is responsible for obtaining the signature of the appropriate division or department head and Accounting Manager if a Minor Contract Summary Form ("blue sheet") is used and filing the original signed document and Minor Contract Summary Form with the City Clerk. GMFA should be included on the Distribution List on the Form.

- 12. If the contract exceeds the minor contract threshold, the recipient department or division will prepare the Agenda Sheet and route it for approval via OnBase upon receipt of the signed contract from the subrecipient.
- 13. Amendments to subawards may be approved by the department or division head after consultation with the GMFA Department so long as they do not change the overall amount of the award. A Subrecipient Contract Request Form detailing the requested and a Minor Contract Summary Form must be sent to the Department of GMFA for approval and creation of a contract amendment. The GMFA Department will also obtain approval from the Legal and Accounting Departments.
- 14. The Award Manager shall ensure that final copies of fully signed around awards and all amendments are uploaded into the Award Management System after receipt from the City Clerk.

#### FFATA REPORTING

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure City compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.

#### Policy:

The Award Manager or his/her designee shall be responsible for reporting all subawards supported with federal funding and which are greater than \$25,000 into the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Subaward Reporting System (FSRS). by the end of the month following the month in which a subaward or obligation was made and, for contracts, the month in which a modification was issued that changed any previously reported information or increased the threshold of the award to the \$25,000 reporting threshold under the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.

#### Procedure:

- 1. The Award Manager and/or his/her designee shall report subawards and/or any amendments meeting the FFATA threshold of \$25,000 by the end of the month following the month in which the contract or amendment was signed by a designated City official as provided for under this Guide.
- 2. If more than one subaward contract is entered into with an agency or individual under a single federal award, the combined award amount should be taken into consideration when determining reporting requirements under FFATA. I.e. if a single agency is awarded two different subawards in the amount of \$15,000 each under a single federal grant, the contracts are subject to reporting under FFATA.
- 3. A pdf copy of the report shall be uploaded into the Award Management System by the person submitting the FFATA report.
- 4. Any questions regarding applicability or reporting requirements under FFATA should be referred to the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for technical assistance.
- 5. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will provide oversight monitoring of FFATA reporting in the Award Management System.

#### SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the activities of all subrecipients are appropriately monitored in compliance with laws, regulations and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements and the identified performance goals are achieved.

#### Policy:

At the outset of every subrecipient contract and for each fiscal year during the contract performance period, the recipient department or division shall perform a risk assessment and implement an appropriate monitoring plan to assess project performance, including program objectives, eligible activities and benchmarks, financial management, including allowability and allocability of costs. Monitoring of subrecipients may consist of on-site or remote techniques, or a combination thereof, based on results of the risk assessment.

The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall be notified of any concerns or weaknesses identified and will assist in the development and oversight of a corrective action plan. In addition, GMFA shall be responsible for conducting subrecipient audit reviews during the contract performance period.

All risk assessments and monitoring activities, including corrective action plans, will be documented in the Award Management System.

#### Procedure:

- Upon awarding a subrecipient contract and each fiscal year thereafter during the contract performance period, the Award Manager shall perform a risk assessment of the subrecipient and develop a monitoring schedule accordingly. The Award Manager shall consult any guidance materials provided by the funding agency in this regard and may also contact the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for technical assistance.
- 2. Throughout the contract performance period, the Award Manager shall monitor his/her subrecipients by implementing the following oversight:
  - a. Budget Control Compare actual expenditures/outlays with budgeted amounts.
  - b. Expenditure Verification Ensure that all expenditures billed are supported by source documentation to include, but not limited to, cancelled checks, invoices, time and effort records or certifications, payroll records, contract and subaward documents, etc.
  - c. Allowable Costs All subaward expenditures shall be reviewed to determine that the costs billed are in accordance with program requirements.
  - d. Performance The Award Manager shall monitor regular performance reports and verify that subrecipient performance is adequate. When performance concerns arise, the department shall notify the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance his/her department or division head and develop and document an appropriate action plan. Actions that may take place in response to a deficiency include, but are not limited to:
    - i. Issuing a letter of warning and putting the subrecipient on notice that additional action will be taken if the deficiency is not corrected or is repeated;
    - ii. Recommend, or request the subrecipient to submit a corrective action plan; and
    - iii. Suspension of the disbursement of funds for the deficient activity.
  - e. **Cash Management** Ensure subrecipients are paid on a reimbursement basis only unless specifically authorized by the Director of Grants Management and Financial Assistance.
  - f. Property Management If property is purchased or passed-through under the subaward, verify fixed asset records on an annual basis during the period of performance and at award closeout, to ensure that the CFDA number of the grant which purchased the equipment, if applicable, and other award identification information, description of the property, serial or other identification number, the source of funding, who holds title, the acquisition date, cost of the property, percentage of federal participation in the costs (if acquired under a federal award), location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition data, including the date of disposal and sale price of the property is being tracked.
- 3. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall monitor the Audit Requirements as specified in the subrecipient contract, including obtaining and reviewing all subrecipient's audit reports within 30 days after issuance, but no later than nine months after the end of the audit period and reviewing for compliance and verifying submission to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) if federal money is involved. If an audit finding exists for noncompliance or a determination that a lack of internal controls may affect compliance, the City will require a corrective action plan and may perform additional monitoring tasks. A management decision will be issued in writing to resolve the issue within six months.
- 4. The Award Manager will notify the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance and/ his/her department or division head of any non-compliance issues and concerns.
- 5. The Department of Grants Management& Financial Assistance will assist the Award Manager in the development and oversight of a respective corrective action plan.
- 6. All subrecipient monitoring activities and corrective actions plans will be documented by the responsible individual(s) in the Award Management System.

#### SECTION SIX: REPORTING

#### PROGRAM REPORTS

#### Purpose:

To ensure that the program results and associated reporting of grant and financial assistance supported activities are accurate, current, complete and made in accordance with the specific reporting requirements of the award or subaward and any and all associated regulations.

#### Policy:

The Award Manager shall prepare program reports with supporting source documentation, including subrecipient reports. The reports will be reviewed by the department or division head and/or the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance and signed, if required. Copies of reports submitted will be retained in the Award Management System.

#### Procedures:

- 1. All program reporting deadlines will be input in the Award Management System and tasked out to the Award Manager or other appropriate personnel in the recipient division or department as designated in the initial Award Management Team assignments.
- 2. The assigned personnel shall prepare the report in accordance with the reporting guidelines as uploaded to the Award Management System. The report should include supporting documentation as appropriate.
- 3. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall provide technical assistance if requested.
- 4. The completed report, including supporting documentation shall be uploaded into the Award Management System for review and approval by the department director or division head. A hard copy shall also be forwarded if required for submission to the funding agency.
- 5. Dependent upon risk status, the report may also need approval of the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.
- 6. The Award Manager shall obtain the signature of the division or department head on the report, if required, and submit it to the awarding agency as required and note the submission date in the Award Management System.
- 7. If the funding agency has designated the use of a separate reporting system, all reports may be maintained in that system rather than duplicated in the Award Management System upon at the discretion of the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

#### FINANCIAL REPORTS

#### Purpose:

To ensure that the financial results and associated reporting of grant and financial assistance supported activities are accurate, current, complete and made in accordance with the specific reporting requirements of the award or subaward and any and all associated regulations.

#### Policy:

The Accounting Department shall prepare financial reports with supporting source documentation to verify the allowability and allocability of the expenses. The reports will be verified for accuracy and compliance by the Award Manager in the City department or division receiving the award and signed by the department or division head and/or the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

- 1. All financial reporting deadlines will be input in the Award Management System and tasked out the appropriate personnel in the Accounting Department as designated in the initial Award Management Team assignments.
- 2. Prior to preparing the financial report, the assigned accounting personnel shall analyze the expenditures vs. income received for the reporting period, including any program income received.
- 3. The assigned accounting personnel shall prepare the report in accordance with the reporting guidelines as uploaded to the Award Management System. The report shall include supporting documentation to back up all of the revenue and expenses reported, including, but not limited to, drawdown requests, program income calculations, copies of invoices paid, payroll documentation and a report showing actual revenue and expenditures printed directly from the financial system. If match is reported, the associated supporting documentation shall also be included.
- 4. Expenses that have not posted to the general ledger at the time of the report preparation will not be reported except under exceptional circumstances (to be determined and approved by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance on a case-by-case basis).
- 5. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall provide technical assistance if requested.
- 6. The completed report, including supporting documentation shall be uploaded into the Award Management System for review and approval by the Award Manager and/or the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance. A hard copy shall also be forwarded if required for submission to the funding agency.
- 7. The Award Manager shall review the report and the supporting documentation to verify that all of the expenses reported are allowable and allocable and adequately supported.

- 8. Dependent upon risk status, the report may also need approval of the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.
- 9. The Award Manager shall obtain the signature of the division or department head on the report and submit it to the awarding agency as required and note the submission date in the Award Management System.
- 10. If the award has been determined to be high risk by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance, GMFA may assume responsibility for signing and submitting the report in coordination with the recipient division or department head.
- 11. A copy of the financial report, including appropriate approvals, shall be uploaded into the Award Management System.

#### SECTION SEVEN: AUDITS & REVIEWS

#### **REVIEWS & MONITORING VISITS**

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the City provides all needed documentation and verification of compliance to any funding agencies or their designees conducting reviews, monitoring or technical assistance support on City grants and other financial assistance awards.

#### Policy:

Award Managers shall ensure that the Grants Management & Financial Assistance Department and the Accounting Department are made aware of any scheduled reviews, monitoring or technical assistance visits made by their funding agency or designees. The Award Manager shall forward to the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance any advance documentation requests, including risk assessments, compliance checklists, etc. and the Director of GMFA shall be responsible for coordinating the City's official response. The Director of GMFA shall also be responsible for developing and overseeing corrective action plans to any recommendations or weaknesses identified.

#### Procedure:

- 1. Award Managers shall forward any notices of on-site or off-site reviews, monitoring or technical assistance events as soon as practical to the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.
- The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will provide technical assistance in preparation for the visit, including reviewing the award file in the Award Management System, providing the reviewer audit access to the Award Management System and coordinating the official response to risk assessments, compliance checklists and other advance documentation requests.
- 3. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will provide technical assistance and overall compliance support to the Award Manager and the recipient City department or division during the review or visit.
- 4. The Award Manager shall upload any monitoring reports into the Award Management System and notifying the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.
- 5. If any weaknesses or recommendations are identified, the Director of GMFA shall be responsible for developing and overseeing an improvement plan, as appropriate, in coordination with the Award Manager.

#### AUDITS

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the City obtains an annual Single Audit and participates with any other audits conducted by funding agencies and their designated auditors to verify its compliance with all applicable rules, regulations and Circulars.

#### Policy:

The City of Spokane is responsible for obtaining audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984 (31 U.S.C. 7501-7) and Federal agency implementing regulations. The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall serve as the primary point of contact with the state auditors for the Single Audit and shall be responsible for the developing and overseeing the implementation of any corrective action plans. The final Single Audit Report shall be submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within the earlier of 30 days after receipt or nine months after the City's fiscal year end. The Accounting Department shall be responsible for electronically submitting the Single Audit Report.

The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall also serve as the primary point of contact for any other audits conducted by funding agencies and their designated auditors on the City's awarded grants and other financial assistance and shall be responsible for developing and overseeing the implementation of corrective action plans.

The City of Spokane will make the master award file and any and all supporting documents available for review upon request by the awarding agency, its Inspector General, the Comptroller General of the United States or any other audit agencies designated by the funding agency.

#### Procedure:

- 1. The Accounting Department will compile and prepare of the Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance (SEFA) and may coordinate with the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for a secondary review.
- The Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall serve as the primary point of contact with the state auditors for the Single Audit and will assist City departments and divisions receiving grant and financial assistance funding with compliance oversight and technical assistance to comply with audit requirements in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
- 3. The formal Single Audit Exit Conference shall be schedule to occur in conjunction with a Finance Committee meeting.
- 4. Within the earlier of 30 days after receipt or nine months after the City's fiscal year end, the Accounting Department will electronically submit the Single Audit Report to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.
- 5. In addition, the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall serve as the primary point of contact for audits conducted by funding agencies and their designated auditors.
- 6. Auditors will be provided access to the Award Management System by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance for purposes of reviewing master award files and verifying internal controls.
- 7. In instances of concerns identified, whether included in a formal management letter or only provided orally, and/or audit findings, the Director of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will assume primary responsibility for development of a corrective action plan in coordination with the affected departments or divisions and submitting the plan to the auditor, funder and any other appropriate reviewing agencies. In addition, the Director of GMFA will follow-up with the City departments or divisions to ensure that the appropriate corrective action has been implemented.

#### SECTION EIGHT: CLOSE-OUT & RECORDS RETENTION

#### CLOSE-OUT

#### Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all required final documents are submitted and conditions met to ensure the proper close-out of grants and financial assistance awards.

#### Policy:

After the expiration or termination of an award, the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance shall oversee the close-out process to ensure that all required reports are submitted, actions taken and conditions met to ensure proper compliance.

- 1. The Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance will monitor period of performance ending dates in the Award Management System and reconvene the designated Award Management Team within 90 days of the end of the period of performance to review close-out requirements.
- 2. If performance under an award will end at an earlier date or has been terminated for any reason by the recipient department or division or the funding agency, the Award Manager shall notify the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance as soon as possible to ensure proper close-out procedures are implemented.
- 3. At the Award Team meeting, close-out requirements shall be reviewed, roles, responsibilities and timelines established and the resulting deadlines and workflow input into the Award Management System. Examples of required actions including analyzing expenditures vs. income received during the award period; reconciling records to ensure that expenditures or equal to, or less than budget, and that cash received, appropriately adjusted, equals expenditures and verifying inventory records of subrecipients who received property under the award.
- 4. All close-out documents will be uploaded to the Award Management System and reviewed and approved by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance prior to submission.

5. The Award Manager is responsible for submitting all final documents to the awarding agency after approval by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance.

#### RECORDS RETENTION Purpose:

The City of Spokane is responsible for ensuring that complete award records, including all supporting documents to prove the allocability and allowability of revenues, expenditures, obligations, program income, interest, assets, authorizations and unobligated balances must be retained for audit purposes in accordance with federal, state and specific award requirements.

#### Policy:

The official award file, including but not limited to the contact and amendments, applications, statistical records, subawards, program and financial reports, income and expenditures, requests for reimbursement, and all associated supporting documentation, will be maintained in the Award Management System as designated by the Department of Grants Management & Financial Assistance. The Award Manager and designated members of the Award Management Team are responsible for establishing and maintaining this record and ensuring it is complete by uploading and updating all award documents. Records in the electronic Award Management System will be maintained indefinitely.

Supporting original documents such as original signed contracts will be maintained by the Award Manager for three (3) years or the required retention period specified in the award agreement, or the retention schedule prepared by the Secretary of State, whichever is longer.

Additional supporting records such as the fixed asset records for real property and equipment acquired with grant or financial assistance funds will be retained for three (3) years after disposition. Indirect cost rate proposals and cost allocation plans will be retained for three (3) years following the end of the fiscal year (or other accounting period) covered by the proposal, plan, or other computation.

The retention period begins following the submission date of the audit report covering the entire award period, or until all issues resulting from litigation, audit/audit resolution, or claims have been resolved, whichever is later.

# Job Opportunities

The City of Spokane is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer

#### FIRE COMMUNICATIONS SPECIALIST SPN 285 OPEN ENTRY

DATE OPEN: Monday, January 25, 2016 DATE CLOSED: Sunday, February 7, 2016 at 11:59 p.m. SALARY: \$41,437.47 annual salary, payable bi-weekly, to a maximum of \$83,915.11 after 35 years of service

#### DUTIES:

Performs specialized pre-hospital emergency medical, fire and special operations communications work receiving, recording, and transmitting emergency and non-emergency telephone and radio calls.

#### MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Open Entry Requirements: All requirements must be met at the time of application.

Education: High school diploma or equivalent.

Experience: None

Certifications: All applicants must obtain the following certifications during the probationary period:

- Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD)
- Emergency Medical Technician (EMT)
- Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR)

**REQUIRED ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS:** Must be received in our office by the closing date, preferably attached to application.

 DD Form 214 (Member-4) or NGB Form 22, if applicable. (See RCW 41.04.010 as to how Veterans' Preference is applied.)

#### **EXAMINATION DETAILS:**

Applicants must meet the minimum qualifications and pass the examination for this position to be eligible for hire. The examination will consist of a written test and a performance test, with weights assigned as follows:

- Written Test: 100%
- Criticall Performance Test: Pass/Fail
  - NOTE: All applicants must be able to type a minimum of 40 words (200 keystrokes) per minute.

Upon request, at time of application, the City will provide alternative accessible tests to individuals with disabilities that impair manual, sensory or speaking skills needed to take the test, unless the test is intended to measure those skills.

#### WRITTEN TEST DETAILS:

Written tests will be conducted in the Civil Service Test Room (4th floor, City Hall) during the week of **February 15, 2016**, with start times of 9:00 a.m. or 1:00 p.m. The approximate duration of the test is 2-1/2 hours.

**Self-schedule written test date and time:** Upon acceptance of your application, you will receive an e-mail with complete instructions to self-schedule the written test session you would like to attend. Multiple sessions will be made available and are filled on a first come, first served basis.

The written test may include such subjects as: Radio Communications; Accuracy & Error Detection; Vocabulary & Spelling; Grammar Fundamentals; Following Directions; Interpersonal Relations; and Computer Literacy

#### PERFORMANCE TEST DETAILS:

Performance tests will be conducted during the week of **February 22, 2016**. The approximate duration of the performance test is 1-1/2 hours.

**Self-schedule performance test date and time:** Upon passing the written test, candidates whose scores place them in the top 25 of the eligible ranking will receive an email with complete instructions to self-schedule the performance test session you would like to attend. Multiple sessions will be made available and are filled on a first come, first served basis. If necessary, additional invitations to participate in the performance test may be sent to candidates beyond the top 25, in rank order.

#### TO APPLY:

Applications must be filed online at: <u>http://my.spokanecity.org/jobs.</u>

Copies of required additional documents may be attached to your application or submitted via any of the following:

- Email: <u>civilservice@spokanecity.org</u> with <u>Job Title Applicant Name</u> in the subject line of the email
- In person or mail to: Civil Service Commission, 4th Floor-City Hall, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd., Spokane, WA 99201
- Fax: (509) 625-6077

By order of the SPOKANE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION, dated at Spokane, Washington, this 25th day of January 2016.

CHERYL BECKETT Chair GITA GEORGE-HATCHER Chief Examiner

#### WATER MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR SPN 532 PROMOTIONAL EXAMINATION

DATE OPEN:Monday, January 25, 2016DATE CLOSED: Sunday, February 7, 2016 at 11:59 p.m.SALARY:\$78,320.88 annual salary, payable bi-weekly, to a maximum of \$96,570.00

#### DUTIES:

Performs responsible field and administrative supervisory work assisting in the direction of several skilled construction and maintenance crews. Responsible for the field work and timing of several crews and subordinate supervisors and forepersons.

#### MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Promotional Requirements: (Must be met by date of examination.)

Experience: Two years of experience with the City in the classification of Water Service Foreperson (SPN 523).

**Certifications:** Must obtain Washington State Certification as a Water Distribution Manager III and a Cross Connection Control Specialist I within one year of promotion.

Licenses: Applicants must possess a valid driver's license.

**REQUIRED ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS:** Must be received in our office by the closing date, preferably attached to application.

 DD Form 214 (Member-4) or NGB Form 22, if applicable. (See RCW 41.04.010 as to how Veterans' Preference is applied.)

#### EXAMINATION DETAILS: GENERAL EXAMINATION INFORMATION:

Applicants must meet the minimum qualifications and pass the examination for this position to be eligible for hire. The examination will consist of a written test, training and experience evaluation, and promotional evaluation, with weights assigned as follows:

- Written Test: 50%
- T&E Evaluation: 30%
- Promotional Evaluation: 20%

Upon request, at time of application, the City will provide alternative accessible tests to individuals with disabilities that impair manual, sensory or speaking skills needed to take the test, unless the test is intended to measure those skills.

#### WRITTEN TEST DETAILS:

The written test will be conducted in the Civil Service Test Room (4th floor, City Hall) on 2/18/2016 at 9:00 a.m. The approximate duration of the test is 2 hours.

**Self-schedule written test date and time:** Upon acceptance of your application, you will receive an e-mail with complete instructions to self-schedule your test session. Additional sessions may be added depending on the number of applications accepted.

The written test may include such subjects as: Records & Reports, Reading Comprehension, Supervision & Training, Technical Knowledge, Safety, and Human Relations.

#### **T&E EVALUATION DETAILS:**

Download the T&E form: <u>http://static.spokanecity.org/documents/jobs/civilservice/532-02-2016-T&E.pdf</u> Your completed T&E must be uploaded at the time of application.

The T&E Evaluation has been designed to:

- 1. Evaluate the relevance, level, recency, progression, and quality of the applicant's education, training and experience.
- 2. Elicit sufficient job-related information that will be used to evaluate the amount and quality of the applicant's previous job-related experience, as well as any other information deemed important to performing the duties of the position.

TIP: The T&E Evaluation is a 30% portion of the Civil Service examination for this position; therefore, it is advantageous for you to provide a full and complete response to each question, even if the information is duplicated elsewhere.

- Responses should be consistent with the information on your application and are subject to verification. Changes or corrections to your responses cannot be made once your application packet has been submitted.
- Failure to complete all of the questions or incomplete responses will result in a lower score.
- Resumés will not be accepted in lieu of completing each question. "See Resumé " or "See Application" are not qualifying responses and will <u>not</u> be considered in the rating process.

#### PROMOTIONAL EVALUATION DETAILS

Pursuant to Civil Service Rule VI, Section 9, an evaluation of an employee's job performance [in the form of a Performance Appraisal Review (PAR)] shall be a subject in all promotion exams. The PAR should be administered by the employee's supervisor within the past year.

- The employee's most recent PAR is the Promotional Evaluation for this position.
- If the most recent PAR is expired (older than one year), the employee's payroll clerk and supervisor are notified. The supervisor is responsible for submitting an updated PAR to the HR department for approval prior to the closing date.

 If an updated PAR is not received by the closing date, the most recent PAR on file will be used, regardless of date administered.

#### TO APPLY:

<u>An application is required for promotional applicants.</u> Applications must be filed online at: <u>http://my.spokanecity.org/jobs.</u> Copies of required additional documents may be attached to your application or submitted via any of the following:

- Email: civilservice@spokanecity.org with Job Title Applicant Name in the subject line of the email
- In person or mail to: Civil Service Commission, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor-City Hall, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd., Spokane, WA 99201
- Fax: (509) 625-6077

By order of the SPOKANE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION, dated at Spokane, Washington, this 25th day of January 2016.

CHERYL BECKETT Chair GITA GEORGE-HATCHER Chief Examiner

#### FIREFIGHTER DISPATCHER SPN 925 PROMOTIONAL EXAMINATION

## DATE OPEN:Monday, January 25, 2016DATE CLOSED:Sunday, February 7, 2016 at 11:59 p.m.SALARY:\$41,437.47 annual salary, payable bi-weekly, to a maximum of \$83,915.11

#### DUTIES:

Performs skilled communications work receiving, recording and transmitting telephone, radio, and alarm system calls. May be required to work on a rotating shift basis or other than a normal work week and is subject to recall. May respond to emergency incidents to assist with communications and accountability functions.

#### MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Promotional Requirements: (Must be met by date of examination.)

- Experience: Completion of the probationary period in the classification of Firefighter (SPN 931).
- **Certifications:** Must obtain EMD (Emergency Medical Dispatch) certification within one year of in-class date.

**REQUIRED ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS:** Must be received in our office by the closing date, preferably attached to application.

 DD Form 214 (Member-4) or NGB Form 22, if applicable. (See RCW 41.04.010 as to how Veterans' Preference is applied.)

#### **EXAMINATION DETAILS:**

Applicants must meet the minimum qualifications and pass the examination for this position to be eligible for hire. The examination will consist of a written test, performance test and promotional evaluation, with weights assigned as follows:

- Written Test: 80%
- Criticall Performance Test: Pass/Fail
  - ♦ NOTE: All applicants must be able to type a minimum of 40 words (200 keystrokes) per minute.
- Promotional Evaluation: 20%

Upon request, at time of application, the City will provide alternative accessible tests to individuals with disabilities that impair manual, sensory or speaking skills needed to take the test, unless the test is intended to measure those skills.

#### WRITTEN TEST DETAILS:

The written test will be conducted in the Civil Service Test Room (4th floor, City Hall) on **February 16, 2016, at 1:00 p.m.** The approximate duration of the test is 2-1/2 hours.

**Self-schedule written test date and time:** Upon acceptance of your application, you will receive an e-mail with complete instructions to self-schedule your test session.

The written test may include such subjects as: Radio Communications; Accuracy & Error Detection; Vocabulary & Spelling; Grammar Fundamentals; Following Directions; Interpersonal Relations; and Computer Literacy

#### PERFORMANCE TEST DETAILS:

Performance tests will be conducted during the week of **February 22, 2016**. The approximate duration of the performance test is 1-1/2 hours.

**Self-schedule performance test date and time:** Upon passing the written test, you will receive an email with complete instructions to self-schedule the performance test session you would like to attend. Multiple sessions will be made available and are filled on a first come, first served basis.

#### PROMOTIONAL EVALUATION DETAILS

Pursuant to Civil Service Rule VI, Section 9, an evaluation of an employee's job performance [in the form of a Performance Appraisal Review (PAR)] shall be a subject in all promotion exams. The PAR should be administered by the employee's supervisor within the past year.

- The employee's most recent PAR is the Promotional Evaluation for this position.
- If the most recent PAR is expired (older than one year), the employee's payroll clerk and supervisor are notified. The supervisor is responsible for submitting an updated PAR to the HR department for approval prior to the closing date.
- If an updated PAR is not received by the closing date, the most recent PAR on file will be used, regardless of date administered.

#### TO APPLY:

<u>An application is required for promotional applicants.</u> Applications must be filed online at: <u>http://my.spokanecity.org/jobs.</u> Copies of required additional documents may be attached to your application or submitted via any of the following:

- Email: civilservice@spokanecity.org with Job Title Applicant Name in the subject line of the email
- In person or mail to: Civil Service Commission, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor-City Hall, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd., Spokane, WA 99201
- Fax: (509) 625-6077

By order of the SPOKANE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION, dated at Spokane, Washington, this 25th day of January 2016.

CHERYL BECKETT Chair

GITA GEORGE-HATCHER Chief Examiner

## Notice for Bids

## Paving, Sidewalks, Sewer, etc.

#### CALL FOR BIDS

CSO Basin 12 Control Facility and Pettet Drive from T J Meenach Drive to Augusta Avenue

#### Engineering Services File No. 2013211 (lead) & 2015099

This project consists of the construction of approximately a +700,000 gallon CSO tank with mechanical and electrical facilities, structural excavation including haul, shoring, and retaining wall construction, roadway construction with approximately  $\pm$ 6,400 c.y. of roadway excavation,  $\pm$ 1,250 c.y. of roadway embankment,  $\pm$ 6,240 l.f. of sanitary and storm sewer pipe installation, stormwater bio-infiltration facility construction,  $\pm$ 1,560 l.f. of water main installation,  $\pm$ 20,720 s.y. of 3 inch and 5 inch HMA paving, trail construction, sidewalk and curb installation, communication conduit installation, landscaping and irrigation work, sundry utility adjustments, and other related miscellaneous items.

The City of Spokane Purchasing Department, Fourth floor, City Hall, 808 West Spokane Falls Boulevard, Spokane WA 99201–3316, will receive sealed bids until 1:00 p.m., February 8, 2016 for the above project located in Spokane, Washington, in accordance with the Contract Documents on file at the Department, Engineering Services. The bids will be publicly opened and read at 1:15 p.m. in the City Council Chambers.

**Copies of the Contract Documents are available at www.cityofspokaneplans.com**. The Planholders list is also available at this website. Additional project information including the Engineer's estimated cost range

for the project, bid results (after bid opening), as well as information about other City projects are available by following the appropriate links at the following website: <a href="http://www.spokaneengineering.org/bid-information">www.spokaneengineering.org/bid-information</a>.

The City of Spokane, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulation, Department of Transportation, subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises as defined at 49 CFR Part 26 will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin, or sex in consideration for an award.

Bids shall be submitted on the forms provided in accordance with the provisions of the Specifications. Irregular bid proposals will be rejected in accordance with the specifications.

Cash, cashier's check, a certified check or surety bond in the sum of five percent (5%) of the Total Project Bid must accompany the copy of the bid filed with the City Clerk. Successful bidder shall execute the Contract within FIVE (5) calendar days after receiving the Contract. Should the successful bidder fail to enter into such contract and furnish satisfactory performance bond within the time stated herein, the bid proposal deposit shall be forfeited to the City of Spokane.

The City of Spokane will normally award this Contract or reject bids within FORTY FIVE (45) calendar days after the time set for the bid opening. If the lowest responsible Bidder and the City of Spokane agree, this deadline may be extended. If they cannot agree on an extension by the 45-calendar day deadline, the City of Spokane reserves the right to Award the Contract to the next lowest responsible Bidder or reject all Bids.

A prebid conference will be held at Spokane City Hall in the Council Briefing Center the office of the (808 W. Spokane Falls Boulevard) at 9:45 a.m. on January 26, 2016.

In accordance with SMC 7.06.500 and RCW 39.04.350(1), the low bidder shall complete the Supplemental Bidder Responsibility Criteria form located in Appendix C. Failure to promptly submit the form including supporting documentation if required may delay award of the Contract.

# \*\*\*\*Time is of the essence due to the length of the construction window and/or the time of year in which the project is being constructed. Please note that various award phase steps have shorter than normal time frames as detailed in section 1-03.3, 1-08.4, and 1-08.5.

*"It is anticipated that this project will be funded in part by the Washington State Department of Ecology. Neither the State of Washington nor any of its departments or employees are, or shall be, a party to this contract or any subcontract."* 

"The Successful bidder will be required to conform to the wage requirements prescribed by the federal Davis-Bacon and Relate Acts which requires that all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors and subcontractors performing on contracts funded in whole or in part by SRF appropriations in excess of \$2000 pay their laborers and mechanics not less than the prevailing wage rates and fringe benefits, and determined by the Secretary of Labor, for corresponding classes of laborers and mechanics employed on similar projects in the area."\*\*\*

Publish January 20, 27 and February 3, 2016

#### PERIODICAL